
 

 

Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 - 2112 
 
 

      LOCATION 2: 4852 LA CANADA BLVD, LA CANADA CA 91011            
 

 
DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 
 
James Bissell, President - Stefaniya Becking, Vice President - John Boyle, Treasurer - Ken Brown, Secretary 
Gunnar Thordarson, Member 

 
                                                                     BOARD MEETING 
 
Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 3 minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the Board Chair. 

 
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the 
Board’s jurisdiction provided the matter is not on the agenda or pending before the Board. 

 
 
BOARD BUSINESS 

 
1. The Board will consider adoption of the November 19, 2018 Board Meeting minutes 
 
2. Procurement Policy – Resolution No. 497 - Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
3. Treatment Lagoon Baffle, Diffuser and Aeration System Upgrade – Preliminary Design Review  

Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

4. Operations Report  –  General Manager 
 

5. Financial Report  –  General Manager 
 

5.1 P&L and Balance Sheet Reports - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
5.2 Accounts Payable Report - Discussion and Possible Action Item  
5.3 A/R & Aging Reports – Discussion 
5.4 FY 2017-18 Audit - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

6. Closed Session – Public Employment (GC § 54954.5 and 54957) 
                        Public Employee Performance 
 
7. Board Member Reports 
 

Materials related to any item on this Agenda are available for public inspection in the District Office at 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, 
CA 95223 during normal business hours.  Information on materials in the agenda is also available on the Bear Valley Water District 
website at http://www.bvwd.ca.gov, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting.  Any material provided to the 
legislative body at the meeting by agency staff or a member of the legislative body will be available at the public meeting, documents 
provided by others will be available right after the meeting. 
 
This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42USC, #12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act, CA Government Code # 54954.2. 
 
Any persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Judi 
Silber at 209-753-2112, during regular business hours, at least 72 hours prior to the meetings.  



 

 
 

 
November 19, 2018 - 9 A.M. 

 
441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, CA 952 23 

Call- In Info: 605-475 -59 20   Access Code: 475-0045 

 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION 2: 546 LUCILLE DRIVE, INCLINE VILLAGE, NV, 89451 

 

MINUTES 
       REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
 

DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 
President James Bissell called the meeting to order at 9:14 A.M.  Directors present were John Boyle,  
Treasurer, Ken Brown, Secretary, and Gunnar Thordarson, Director, attended by phone.  Staff present 
icluded Jeff Gouveia and Judi Silber.  No public present. 
 
Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 3 minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the 
Board Chair. 

 
 

PUBLIC FORUM 
 

Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within 
the Board's jurisdiction provided the matter is not on the agenda or pending before the Board. 

 
 

BOARD BUSINESS 
 

1. The Board will consider adoption of the July 30, 2018 Board Meeting minutes 
 

Motion/Boyle Second/Bissell to accept the Minutes of the Jul 30, 2018 Meeting as corrected. 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
2. Procurement Policy- Resolution No. 497 - Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
GM Gouveia estimated the cost of the treatment lagoon aeration and baffle upgrade project to be 
between $100K to $150K.  GM approached legal counsel to review public contract code law and to 
determine if this project would meet the threshold for public bidding.  Legal counsel reviewed the 
District’s enabling statutes and determined that projects exceeding $35K must be put out to bid and let 
the lowest responsible bidder.  Legal counsel recommended that the Board adopt a Procurement Policy 
that explicitly stipulates a Purchasing Agent for the District and clarifies how public projects as well as 
professional services should be procured. The Board reviewed and discussed the draft Procurement 
Policy and after a lengthy discussion provided the GM with a series of questions and concerns to be 
clarified with legal counsel before accepting. 
 
Motion Bissell Second Boyle to authorize GM to engage the District Engineer for a preliminary design for 
the diffuser/baffle project not to exceed $25K. 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. Operations Report - General Manager 
 

See Attachment. 
 
 
 



 

4. Financial Report - General Manager 
 

4.1 P&L and Balance Sheet Reports - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

Motion Boyle Second Brown to accept the P&L and Balance Sheet Reports as presented. 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Becking 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

4.2 Accounts Payable Report - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
Motion Boyle Second Brown to accept the Accounts Payable Reports as presented. 
AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

4.3 A/ R & Aging Reports – Discussion 
 

The Accounts Receivable balance as of November 15, 2018 was $<12,058.56> verses the 
balance on November 15, 2017 of $36,306.68. 
 

4.4 Reserve Funding – Update 
 
The accounts and final numbers for the Reserve Funding were setup at the end of the fiscal 
year audit as instructed by the Board of Directors. 
 

4.5 FY 2017-18 Audit - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
Treasurer Boyle will contact Mary Cummins, CPA for a consultation or verbal interview concerning 
the audit and report back to the Board next meeting. 

 
 

5. Board Member Reports 
 

The next board meeting will be held on Tuesday, February 26, 2019 at 9:00 A.M. 
 
 
President Bissell adjourned the meeting at 1:15 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bear Valley Water District· 441 Creekside Drive· P.O. Box 5027 • Bear Valley, CA 95223 • Phone: (209) 753-2112 



 

 
3. 

bear valley 
WATER DISTRICT 

 

AGENDA ITEM 

DATE'. NOVEMBER 19, 2018 

TO: BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM'. JEFF GOUVEIA. DISTRICT 

GENERAL MANAGER RE:  MONTHLY 

OPERATIONS REPORT 

 
 

1. Collections. Treatment & Disposal Operations - Update 
 

a. Flows - Influent Flows & Pond Transfers 
 

     Influent Flows were 192 (MG). 
     Volume of Water Transferred from Treatment to Storage is .034 (MG) 
 

          b. Volumes - Storage, Capacity & Disposal 
 
     Land Application Annual Total for 2018 is 23.215 / 144.6% (MG) 

Surface Discharge for 2018 is 23.6 (MG) 
Current Storage Volume is 7066.3 = 5.13 (MG) 

 
2. Permit Compliance & Monitoring & Reporting Programs (MRPs) - Update 

 
a. WDR MRP - Land Discharge Permit - Compliance & Reporting Update 

 
i. Reporting Status Matrix - All Reporting Submitted On-Time 

 
ii. Groundwater Monitoring Program - All Tri-Annual Monitoring Completed; 1st &      

 
         2nd Reports Sub. 

 
iii. August 2018 WDR Cover Letter Submission - Monthly TSS Limit Violation 32 mg/L 

(Permit = 30) District had a TSS violation in August.  Staff applied bio-augmentation treatment, 
helped the BOD not the TSS.  Sections of the lagoon collect solids.  This provides food for Algae.  
Infrastructure / valves in the diffusers have failed. The violation was our TSS monthly average 
was 32 mg/L above our permitted discharge specification of 30mg/L.   

 
b. NPDES MRP - Surface Water Discharge Permit - Compliance & Reporting Update 

 
i. Reporting Status Matrix - All Reporting Submitted On-Time 

 
ii. August 8, 2018 Notice of Violation Letter - Receiving Water Monitoring 

Oversight Staff missed monitoring in June 2018.  Discharge was completed 
in May 2018 but staff was unclear that receiving water monitoring was still 
required in June when no discharge was occurring. 

 
iii. August 30, 2018 NPDES Request for Changes to Monitoring Frequency & Non-   

Discharge Monitoring.  GM is working with Regional Board to potentially amend 
the permit to remove certain monitoring requirements. 
 
 
 

 

 



 

3. Other 
 

a. Aeration System Upgrade Research - Tentative FY19-20 Capital Project 
 

No As Built drawings.  Staff drew down the lagoon to determine inlet / outlet points.  With 
baffle in its current condition, the lagoon is operating as one cell instead of two and 
potentially short circuiting.  Of the original (36) coarse bubble diffusers installed, only (20) are 
currently operational.  New systems employ small bubble technology.  The buried air header 
has holes in it, is losing air pressure and appears to have reached the end of its’ useful life.  
GM also investigated post treatment filtration as an alternative.   
 

b. DSOD Dam Break Analysis and Inundation Mapping – Update 
i.  

As of October, the DSOD had not yet released the final regulations.  Mead and Hunt are 
waiting on the final regulations before proceeding and plan to provide the District with a 
report (4) months after regulations are released.  GM estimates the total for this project to be 
$19,614.  The first invoice received was in the amount of $1,504. 
 

c. Alpine County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigat ion Plan - FEMA Approval Letter 
 
Alpine County received a letter from FEMA regarding their final review of the Alpine County 
Mitigation Plan.  They found the plan to be in conformance with Title 44 Code of the Federal  
Regulations. 
 

d. Lake Alpine Water Company Resolution W-5175 - General Rate Increase 
 
Lake Alpine Water has increased ¾“ connections by $21.74 a month.  Metered water rate will 
 increase $2.86 per month.   
 

e. Bee Gulch Lift Station Upgrade – Complete 
  
New ultrasonic valve, manifold now on wall, an outside lid to valve, new control panel, and 
new Crane.  The new panel is cellular ready, just waiting for A.T.&T. to install the new 40’ tower 
on top of the 60’ tower.  Currently there is no cellular signal in the Lake Alpine Basin. 
 

f. New Lake Alpine Lodge Ultrasonic Flow Meter Installation 
 

g. October 2018 Newsletter & E-blast 
 
The October 2018 Newsletter focused on the District’s commitment to Transparency, 
2018-19 Budget priority of the lift station upgrade at Lake Alpine, the update of the system 
capacity and the revised new customer capacity fee, a reminder not to flush fats, oils, 
and grease down the drain, and the new dam requirements. 
 

h. Staff Training – Update 
 
GM informed the Board of the recent classes taken by himself and Office Manager Silber. Jeff 
recently attended a Public Contracting Requirements and Bidding in California class, along 
with attending a Nexgen Asset Management Conference. Office Manager Judi Silber 
attended a Human Resources Boot Camp class in Sacramento. 
 



















































BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS 
AND 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 

FOR 
 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEBRUARY 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BID OPENING:                                                          , 2019 AT 10 A.M. 



1 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION I 
 

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS........................................................................................................ 3 
PROPOSAL .................................................................................................................................... 5 
BID SUMMARY ............................................................................................................................... 6 
INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER ...................................................................................... 8 
NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION ............................................................................................. 10 
BID BOND ..................................................................................................................................... 12 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT ................................................................................................. 13 
PERFORMANCE BOND ............................................................................................................... 15 
PAYMENT BOND ......................................................................................................................... 16 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................... 17 

SECTION II - SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS ............................................................ 21 

SECTION II-1.  SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS .......................................................................... 21 
II-1.01   DEFINITIONS AND TERMS ....................................................................................... 21 

SECTION II-2.  PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS ............................................ 23 
II-2.01   GENERAL ................................................................................................................... 23 
II-2.02   PROPOSAL ................................................................................................................ 23 
II-2.03   PROPOSAL GUARANTEE ......................................................................................... 23 
II-2.04   MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE ................................................................................... 24 
II-2.05   IDENTIFICATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS ............................................................. 24 
II-2.06   PRE-BID CONFERENCE ........................................................................................... 25 
II-2.07   ADDENDA ................................................................................................................... 26 

SECTION II-3.  AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT....................................................... 27 
II-3.01   GENERAL ................................................................................................................... 27 
II-3.02   EXECUTION OF CONTRACT, AWARD OF CONTRACT.......................................... 27 
II-3.03   RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTEES ................................................................. 27 

SECTION II-4.  BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND ...................................... 28 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES ............................................................................................................. 28 
SECTION II-5.  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................. 29 

II-5.01   LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION ................................................................................. 29 
II-5.02   BLANK......................................................................................................................... 29 
II-5.03   PUBLIC SAFETY ........................................................................................................ 29 
II-5.04   SURFACE MINING AND RECLAMATION ACT ......................................................... 29 
II-5.05   REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES ............................... 29 
II-5.06   SUBCONTRACTING .................................................................................................. 30 
II-5.07   PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS ................................... 31 
II-5.08   PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS ................. 31 
II-5.09   PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................. 32 
II-5.10   CLAIMS ....................................................................................................................... 32 
II-5.11   CERTIFIED PAYROLL ................................................................................................ 32 
II-5.12   GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES ................................................................... 33 

SECTION II-6.  (BLANK) ............................................................................................................... 33 
SECTION II-7.  (BLANK) ............................................................................................................... 33 
SECTION II-8.  (BLANK) ............................................................................................................... 33 

SECTION III  SPECIAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................. 34 

SECTION III-1  GENERAL ............................................................................................................ 34 
III-1.01   STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS ................................................................................ 34 
III-1.02   LOCATE AND PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES ...................................................... 35 
III-1.03   PROTECTION OF EXISTING ROADWAY SURFACES ........................................... 36 
III-1.04   WORKING HOURS.................................................................................................... 36 



2 
 

III-1.05   ALIGNMENT AND GRADE CONTROL ..................................................................... 36 
III-1.06   SCHEDULE AND SEQUENCE OF OPERATION ...................................................... 37 
III-1.07   SUBMITTAL & SHOP DRAWINGS ............................................................................ 37 
III-1.08   MOBILIZATION .......................................................................................................... 39 
III-1.09   CLEAN UP ................................................................................................................. 40 
III-1.10   WATER POLLUTION ................................................................................................. 40 
III-1.11   SAFETY (SHEETING AND SHORING) ..................................................................... 41 
III-1.12   MATERIALS SUPPLIED BY OWNER ....................................................................... 42 
III-1.13   AS-BUILT PLANS ...................................................................................................... 42 
III-1.14   COMPENSATION ...................................................................................................... 42 

SECTION III-2   SITE WORK ........................................................................................................ 43 
III-2.01   GENERAL .................................................................................................................. 43 
III-2.02   CLEARING AND GRUBBING .................................................................................... 43 
III-2.03   LANDSCAPE PROTECTION ..................................................................................... 44 
III-2.04   EROSION CONTROL ................................................................................................ 44 
III-2.05   FENCING & GATES .................................................................................................. 45 
III-2.06   WOOD BAFFLE WALL REPAIR ................................................................................ 45 
III-2.07   TRENCHES AND BACKFILL ..................................................................................... 46 
III-2.08   COMPACTION TESTING .......................................................................................... 49 

SECTION III-3   AERATION SYSTEM .......................................................................................... 50 
III-3.01   GENERAL .................................................................................................................. 50 
III-3.02   AERATION SYSTEM PIPING .................................................................................... 50 
III-3.03   INSTALLATION .......................................................................................................... 50 
III-3.04   TESTING AND STARTUP ......................................................................................... 51 

APPENDIX A ................................................................................................................................ 53 
Triplepoint Environmental Aeration System 



 

3 
 

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS 
 
Separate sealed BIDS for the "BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT POND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT" will be received by the Bear Valley 
Water District (BVWD), at the office of Weber, Ghio & Associates, P.O. Box 251, 394 
E. Saint Charles Street, San Andreas, California, 95249, until                                      , 
2019 at 10:00 a.m. and then at said office publicly opened and read aloud. A pre-bid 
conference will be held                                                    , 2019, at             a.m. at District 
Office, 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, California 95223.   
 
Bids are required for the entire project as set forth in the specifications, and all work shall 
be completed within forty (40) work days.  At the time the contract is awarded, the 
contractor shall possess a Class A license.   
 
The work is generally described as follows:  Removal of existing submerged aerators 
and piping, placement of new 160 LF of CPVC air header and appurtenances, installation 
of new Triplepoint submerged aerators and piping, and approximately 2100 SF of 2’ x 8’ 
cedar T&G planks to be installed on existing baffle wall. 
 
All work is located within District property in Bear Valley, California. 
 
Project specifications, special provisions, plans, and proposal forms for bidding this 
project can be examined and obtained upon payment of a non-refundable fee of $50, at 
Weber, Ghio & Associates, P.O. Box 251, 394 E. Saint Charles Street, San Andreas, 
California, 95249. 
 
This contract is subject to state contract nondiscrimination and compliance requirements 
pursuant to Government Code, Section 12990 and payment to the contractor shall be in 
accordance with Section 9-1.16, "Progress Payment" of the State Standard Specifications 
and the project specifications. 
 
The successful bidder shall furnish a fully executed payment bond and performance 
bond.  
 
Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates in the 
county, or counties, in which the work is to be done have been determined by the Director 
of the California Department of Industrial Relations.  Addenda to modify wage rates, if 
necessary, will be issued to holders of these specifications.  Future effective general 
prevailing wage rates which have been predetermined and are on file with the California 
Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in the General 
Prevailing Wage Rates section of the project specifications. 
 
No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works project 
(submitted on or after March 1, 2017) unless registered with the Department of Industrial 
Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions from this 
requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code Section 1771.1(a)]. No contractor or 
subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public works project 



 

4 
 

(awarded on or after April 1, 2017) unless registered with the Department of Industrial 
Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5.   
 
This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of 
Industrial Relations. 
 
The District reserves the right to reject any or all bids, and further reserves the right to 
waive any irregularities in the bids. 
 
                                              
___________________________________________                                                         
Matt Ospital, District Engineer                       Date 
Bear Valley Water District 



 

5 
 

 
PROPOSAL 

 
 
PROPOSAL TO:  BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
The undersigned bidder hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools 
and services necessary to perform all work required for complete improvements in 
accordance with the plans and specifications entitled "BEAR VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT" in 
accordance with the intent of plans, specifications, and all addenda issued by Owner. 
 
EXISTENCE OF CONTRACT:  A contract between the bidder and the public agency shall 
not be deemed to exist until all of the following three steps have been taken: 
 
 1. The contract has been awarded by the legislative body; 
 
 2. The contractor has executed a written agreement, in substantially the form 

set forth herein, within 10 days after notice that the contract has been 
awarded. 

 
 3. The contractor has delivered to the public agency the written agreement 

together with the faithful performance bond and payment bond and such 
certificates of insurance in accordance with these special provisions. 

 
If bidder fails to comply with all three steps within the time specified, the proposal 
guarantee furnished by bidder shall be forfeited to Owner as liquidated damages for such 
failure.  If bidder executes the Contract, secures the required insurance and bonds, and 
furnishes the required insurance certificates within time specified herein, bidder's check, if 
furnished, shall be returned within five (5) days thereafter, and the bid bond, if furnished, 
shall become void. 
 
Bidder further agrees to complete all work required under the Contract within the time 
stipulated in said specifications, and to accept as full compensation therefore the price(s) 
set forth in the bid summary. 



 

6 
 

BID SUMMARY 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  

WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

 
Item Quantity Description Unit Price Total Price 

1. 1 LS Locate & Protect Existing Utilities in accordance with the 
plans and specifications. $ $ 

2. 1 LS Wood Baffle Wall Repair in accordance with the plans and 
specifications. $ $ 

3. 1 LS Aeration System in accordance with the plans and 
specifications. $ $ 

BID TOTAL $ 

 
 
CONTRACTOR NAME: ___________________________________________________ 



 

7 
 

Bidder hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date to 
be specified in the Notice to Proceed and to fully complete the project within            
forty (40) consecutive work days thereafter.  Bidder further agrees to pay as liquidated 
damages, the sum of $1,000 for each consecutive calendar day thereafter as set forth in 
Section 4 of these specifications. 
 
CONFIRMATION OF ANY ADDENDUMS:  The following addendums were received and 
considered as part of this bid package: 
 
Addendum(s) _______________ _______________ _______________ 
 
By submission of a bid, bidder certifies possession of a duly issued and valid contractor's 
license issued by the State of California, which license authorizes bidder to contract to 
perform the type of work required by the specifications and that bidder has not less than 
five years of comparable and acceptable public work experience.  Bidder further certifies 
that the plans and specifications and project site have been reviewed, that the special 
state and federal requirements have been read and understood, and that full 
compensation for all work required for a complete and operational project has been 
included in the contract bid prices set forth above.  
 
By submission of a bid, bidder certifies that pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5, 
he/she is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations.  No contractor or 
subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public works project 
(awarded on or after April 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department of 
Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. 
 
Should the Bidder fail to provide below, the number and classification of Bidder's State 
Contractor's License, and complete and accurate "Information Required of Bidder," the 
Owner may reject this bid therefore. 
 
Dated: ___________________  
 
 
By: ___________________________________________ 
 (Contractor's Signature) 
 
Title: ___________________________________________ 
 
Business Name:  ___________________________________ 
 
Contractors Lic. No.:   ______________________________      
 
Expiration Date: ___________________________________ 
 
DIR No.: _________________________________________ 
 
SEAL (if corporation) 



 

8 
 

INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER 
 
The bidder shall furnish the following information.  Failure to comply with this requirement 
will render the Proposal informal and may cause its rejection.  Additional sheets shall be 
attached as required. 
 
1. Contractor's name and address: 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Contractor's telephone number: _____________________________________ 
3. Contractor's license:  Primary classification ____________________________ 
 State License No. _______________________ Exp. Date ________________  
      Supplemental classifications held, if any:  ______________________________  

_______________________________________________________________ 
 
4.  Number of years as a contractor in construction work of this type: _________* 
 
5. Names and titles of all officers of contractor's firm: 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 
6. Name of person in your firm who inspected site of the proposed work and 

reviewed the project plans and specifications. 
 
 Name: _________________________________________________________ 
 
 Date of Inspection: _______________________________________________ 
 
7. Name,   address, and telephone number of surety company and agent who will 
           provide the required bonds on this contract:   
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
 

*Contractor and his subcontractors shall have not less than five (5) years of 
successful experience in municipal public works construction of each phase of 
work required by this contract.  Contractor represents that he has such experience 
and is qualified to perform all work except as set forth in paragraph 8, and that 
subcontractors listed hereon have been contacted and agreed to perform the 
designated work.  Bidders are directed to Section II-3, Award and Execution of 
Contract. 
 
 



 

9 
 

8. The bidder shall list below the name, business address, license number and DIR 
number of each subcontractor who will perform work under this contract in excess 
of one-half percent of the total bid price, or $5,000, whichever is greater; and shall 
also list the portion of the work which will be done by such subcontractor.  This 
includes ready-mix haulers and companies that deliver ready-mixed concrete 
for public works projects in accordance with Labor Code Section 1722.1. 
After the opening of proposals, no changes or substitutions will be allowed without 
the written approval of the Owner. 

 
 

Sub Contractor' Name Address 
License 

No. DIR 
No. Work to Be Performed 

1 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 

 
______  

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

2 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 

 
________ 

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

3 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 

 
________ 

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

4 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 

 
________ 

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

5 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 

 
________ 

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

6 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 
 

 
________ 

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

7 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 

 
________ 

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

8 

____________________________ 
____________________________ 
____________________________ 

 

 
________ 

 
_______ 
 

__________________________
__________________________
__________________________ 

 
Note:  Attach additional sheets as required. 



 

10 
 

 
NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION 

 
TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID 

(Public Contract Code Section 7106) 
 
 

The undersigned declares: 
I am the____________________________of, ____________________________, the 
party making the foregoing bid. 

 
The bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, 

partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation. The bid is genuine and 
not collusive or sham. The bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any 
other bidder to put in a false or sham bid. The bidder has not directly or indirectly 
colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham 
bid, or to refrain from bidding. The bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, 
sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of 
the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid 
price, or of that of any other bidder. All statements contained in the bid are true. The 
bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown 
thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, to any 
corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or to any 
member or agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not paid, and will 
not pay, any person or entity for such purpose. 

 
Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a bidder that is a corporation, 

partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any 
other entity, hereby represents that he or she has full power to execute, and does 
execute, this declaration on behalf of the bidder. 

 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that 

the foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed 
on________________________[Date], at______________________________[City], 
___________________[State]. 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Contractor 

 
 
____________________________________ 
(Print Name) 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Signature) 



 

11 
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATE 
 

Labor Code Section 3700, in relevant part, provides: 
 

“Every employer except the state shall secure the payment of compensation in one 
or more of the following ways: 
 

a) By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more 
insurers duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this state; 
 

b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent 
to self-insure either as an individual employer, or as one employer in a 
group of employers, which certificate may be given upon furnishing proof 
satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and 
to pay any compensation that may become due to his or her employees,…” 

 
I am aware of the provisions of Labor Code Section 3700 which require every employer to 
be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the work of this contract.  I shall supply the Owner with 
certificates of insurance evidencing that Workers’ Compensation Insurance is in effect 
and providing that the Owner will receive thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation. 
  
 
 ____________________________________________ 
 Name of Contractor 
 
 ____________________________________________ 
 Signature      Date 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Print Name 
 
 
(In accordance with Article 5 [commencing at Section 1860], Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor Code, 
the above certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any work under the 
contract.) 



 

12 
 

 
 

BID BOND 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, 
 
That _____________________________________________________as principal, and 
______________________________________________ as Surety, are held and firmly 
bound unto _____________________________________hereinafter called "Owner," in 
the sum of ___________________________________________________ dollars,          
                       (not less than 10 percent of the total amount of the bid) 
for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these 
presents. 
 
WHEREAS, said Principal has submitted a bid to said Owner to perform all work required 
under the bidding schedule of the Owner's specifications entitled, "BEAR VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT." 
 
NOW THEREFORE, if said Principal is awarded a contract by said Owner and, within the 
time and in the manner required in the Owner's specifications, enters into a written 
contract on the form of agreement bound with said specifications and furnishes the 
required bonds, one to guarantee faithful performance and the other to guarantee 
payment for labor and materials, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it 
shall remain in full force and effect.  In the event suit is brought upon this bond by said 
Owner and judgment is recovered, said Surety shall pay all costs incurred by said Owner 
in such suit, including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court. 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED, this ____ day of ______________________, 20____. 
 
 
 
______________________________ (SEAL) ______________________ (SEAL) 
(Principal)                                        (Surety) 
 
 
 
By: _________________________    By: _____________________________ 
      (Signature)                                 (Signature) 
 
(SEAL AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY



 

13 
 

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on ___________________________, 2019, by and 
between the Bear Valley Water District, California (hereinafter referred to as DISTRICT), and 
________________________________, Contractor, (hereinafter referred to as CONTRACTOR), or 
under the authority of the Public Contract Code of the State of California. 
 
The parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
For and in consideration of the mutual promises and other valuable consideration set forth herein, 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, District agrees to employ Contractor and Contractor agrees 
to furnish all materials and labor for the prescribed work; perform and complete in good and 
workmanlike manner all the work pertaining thereto shown on the plans and specifications therefore; 
to furnish at his sole cost and expense all materials, tools, equipment and facilities, and all labor and 
services necessary therefore (except such materials, if any, which under the specifications are to be 
furnished by the District), and to do everything required by this Agreement and said plans and 
specifications, including but not limited to the payment of prevailing wages as required by state law. 
 
Contractor is responsible for furnishing all said materials and labor, tools and equipment, and doing 
all the work contemplated and embraced in this Agreement, also for all loss and damage arising out 
of the nature of the work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen 
difficulties which may arise or be encountered in the prosecution of the work until its acceptance by 
the District, and for all risks of every description connected with the work; also for all expenses 
incurred by or in consequence of the suspension or discontinuance of work, except such as in the 
said specifications are expressly stipulated to be borne by the District.  For well and faithfully 
completing the work and the whole thereof, in the manner shown and described in said plans and 
specifications, the District will pay and the Contractor shall receive in full compensation therefore the 
lump sum price, or if the bid is on the unit price basis, the total price for the several items furnished 
pursuant to the specifications, named in the schedule of the Proposal in the amount of 
$_____________________. 
 
The Notice to Contractors, Proposal, and Specifications are hereby incorporated into and made a 
part of this Agreement by reference as if fully set forth.  
 
Civil Code Section 3247 requires every contractor that receives a public works contract to file a 
payment bond and performance bond with the awarding agency for the agency's review and 
approval. It is the public agency's mandatory duty to ensure that the general contractor's payment 
bond surety meets the requirement of Code of Civil Procedure 995.310. 
 



 

14 
 

The District requires that the contractor submit verification from the California Insurance 
Commissioner of the surety's certificate of authority to issue such bonds. If the surety is not admitted 
or the certificate is unavailable, the agency must reject the bonds and the proposed contract unless 
and until the contractor furnishes bonds provided by an admitted surety insurer or by otherwise 
sufficient sureties.  Verification from the California Insurance Commission must be received, along 
with the bonds, before work begins, or no payment shall be made to Contractor. 
 
Contractor shall submit a detailed schedule of work at the pre-construction conference for approval 
by the District Engineer.  This contract shall not take effect and no payment shall be made to 
Contractor until that schedule is submitted and approved. 
 
If Contractor fails to complete the work in accordance with the schedule set forth in the specifications 
and/or accordance with Section II-4, of the project specifications, Contractor shall be liable for 
liquidated damages in the amount of $1,000 per day for each day of delay.  Liquidated damages 
accrued shall be deducted from compensation due the Contractor and retained by District. 
 
All certificates of insurance, policy endorsements, and all other certificates required by the 
specifications shall be on file with the District before work begins or no payment will be made to 
Contractor. 
 
This is a public works contract within the meaning of Part 7 of Division 2 of the California Labor Code 
(Sections 1720 and following), and the contractor and any subcontractor under him shall pay not 
less than the specified prevailing rates of wages to all workmen employed and be registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. 
 
This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of  
Industrial Relations. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed the day 
and year first above written. 
 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT   CONTRACTOR   
  
 
By______________________________  By____________________________ 
              Date                                                                             Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 



 

15 
 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, 
 
That ______________________________________________ as Contractor, and 
__________________________________________ as Surety, are held and  firmly 
bound unto _____________________________hereinafter called    "Owner," in the 
sum of_______________________________________________________dollars, 
                 (Equivalent to 100 percent of contract amount) 
for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assign, jointly and severally, firmly 
by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, said Contractor has been awarded and is about to enter into the 
contract agreement with said Owner to perform all work required under the bidding 
schedule(s) of the Owner's specifications entitled "BEAR VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT." 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if said contractor shall perform all the requirements of said 
contract required to be performed on his part, at the times and in the manner 
specified therein, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
PROVIDED, that any alterations in the work to be done or the materials to be 
furnished, or changes in the time of completion, which may be made pursuant to the 
terms of said contract, shall not in any way release said Contractor or said Surety 
thereunder, nor shall any extensions of time granted under the provisions of said 
contract release either said Contractor or said Surety, and notice of such alterations 
or extensions of the contract is hereby waived by said Surety. 
 
SIGNED AND SEAL, this _______ day of ___________________, 20____. 
 
__________________________ (SEAL)  _______________________ (SEAL) 
(Contractor)                                (Surety) 
 
 
By:  ________________________    By:  __________________________ 
       (Signature)                                          (Signature) 
 
 
(SEAL AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY) 



 

16 

 
PAYMENT BOND 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, 
 
That ______________________________________________ as Contractor, and 
__________________________________________ as Surety, are held and  firmly 
bound unto _____________________________hereinafter called    "Owner," in the 
sum of _______________________________________________________dollars, 
            (Equivalent to 100 percent of contract amount.) 
for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assign, jointly and severally, firmly 
by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, said Contractor has been awarded and is about to enter into the 
contract agreement with said Owner to perform all work required under the bidding 
schedule(s) of the Owner's specifications entitled "BEAR VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT." 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if said contractor, or subcontractors fails to pay for any 
materials, equipment, or other supplies, or for rental of same, used in connection 
with the performance of work contracted to be done, or for amounts due under 
applicable State law for any work or labor thereon, said Surety will pay for the same 
in an amount not exceeding the sum specified above, and, in the event suit is 
brought upon this bond, a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.  This 
bond shall inure to the benefit of any persons, companies, or corporations entitled to 
file claims under applicable State law. 
 
PROVIDED, that any alterations in the work to be done or the materials to be 
furnished, or changes in the time of completion, which may be made pursuant to the 
terms of said contract, shall not in any way release said Contractor or said Surety 
thereunder, nor shall any extensions of time granted under the provisions of said 
contract release either said Contractor or said Surety, and notice of such alterations 
or extensions of the contract is hereby waived by said Surety. 
 
SIGNED AND SEAL, this _______ day of ___________________, 20____. 
 
__________________________ (SEAL)  _______________________ (SEAL) 
(Contractor)                                (Surety) 
 
 
By:  ________________________    By:  __________________________ 
       (Signature)                                         (Signature) 
 
(SEAL AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY) 



 

17 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

I. THIS CONTRACT/AGREEMENT SHALL NOT BE EXECUTED BY 
DISTRICT and the CONTRACTOR is not entitled to any rights, unless 
certificates of insurances, or other sufficient proof that the following 
provisions have been complied with, and such certificate(s) are filed with the 
Secretary.   

 
II. Without limiting Contractor's indemnification provided herein, Contractor shall 

and shall require any of its subcontractors to take out and maintain, 
throughout the period of this Agreement, the following policies of insurance 
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Bests rating of no less than A:VII or 
its equivalent against injury/death to persons or damage to property which 
may arise from or in connection with the activities hereunder of Contractor, 
its agents, employees or subcontractors: 

 
A. Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability Insurance at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (occurrence form CG 0001), in an amount of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  If work involves explosive, underground or collapse risks, 
XCU must be included.  If a general aggregate limit is used, either the 
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project or the 
general aggregate shall be twice the required occurrence limit. Said 
policy shall contain, or be endorsed with, the following provisions: 

 
(1) The District, its officers, employees and agents, are covered as 

additional insured for liability arising out of the operations 
performed by or on behalf of Contractor.  The coverage shall 
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the District, its officers, agents, and employees. 

 
  (2) The policy shall not be canceled or materially reduced in 

coverage without thirty (30) days prior written notice (10 days 
for non-payment of the premium) to DISTRICT by certified 
mail. 

 
  (3) The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to 

impair the rights of one insured against another insured, and 
the coverage afforded shall apply as though separate policies 
had been issued to each insured, but the inclusion of more 
than one insured shall not operate to increase the limits of the 
insurer's liability. 

 



 

18 

(4) For claims related to this project, the Contractor's insurance is 
primary coverage to the District, and any insurance or self-
insurance programs maintained by the District are excess to 
Contractor's insurance and will not be called upon to contribute 
with it. 

 
(5) Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the 

parties, including breach of warranties, shall not affect 
coverage provided to District, its officers, employees, and 
agents. 

 
  (6) Additional co-insured, if required, are set forth in Section III-

1.05 of these specifications. 
 

B. Automobile liability insurance with coverage at least as broad as 
Insurance Services Office form CA 0001 06092, Code 1 (any auto), 
for vehicles used in the performance of this Agreement with minimum 
coverage of not less than $1,000,000 per accident combined single 
limit (CSL).  Such policy shall contain or be endorsed with the 
provision that coverage shall not be canceled or materially reduced in 
coverage without thirty (30) days prior written notice (10 days for non-
payment of premium) to DISTRICT by certified mail. 

 
C. Workers' Compensation insurance meeting statutory limits of the 

California Labor Code which policy shall contain or be endorsed to 
contain a waiver of subrogation against District, its officers, agents, 
and employees and provide for thirty (30) days prior written notice in 
the event of cancellation.  If Contractor has no employees, Contractor 
may sign and file the following certification in lieu of insurance: 

 
"I am aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code Section 
3700 which requires every employer to be insured against liability for 
workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance 
with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with provisions of 
that code before commencing with and during the performance of the 
work of this contract." 

 
D. Contractor shall furnish DISTRICT with certificates and original 

endorsements affecting the required coverage prior to execution of 
this Agreement by District.  The endorsements shall be on forms as 
approved by the District or designee.  Any deductible or self-insured 
retention over $100,000 shall be disclosed to and approved by 
DISTRICT.  
 



 

19 

If Contractor does not keep all required policies in full force and effect, 
DISTRICT may, in addition to other remedies under this Agreement, 
take out the necessary insurance, and Contractor agrees to pay the 
cost of said insurance. 

 
III. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE 

 
A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, the parties to this 

Agreement shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other 
parties hereto and their officers, agents, and employees, from any 
and all claims, demands, losses, damages, and liabilities of any kind 
or nature, including attorney's fees, which arise by the virtue of its own 
acts or omissions (either directly or through or by its officers, agents 
or employees) in connection with its duties and obligations under this 
Agreement and any amendments hereto.  
 

B. Acceptance of insurance, if required by this Agreement, does not 
relieve Contractor from liability under this indemnification clause.  This 
indemnification clause shall apply to all damages or claims for 
damages suffered by Contractor's operations regardless if any 
insurance is applicable or not. 

 
IV. STATE OF CALIFORNIA INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Verification that insurance in accordance with "Caltrans Insurance 
Requirements," has been complied with shall be provided prior to execution 
of the construction contract.  

 
A. In the event that APPLICANT or an agent, contractor or subcontractor 

of APPLICANT will be present or working on STATE right of way, prior 
to commencement of the work described herein, the APPLICANT 
shall furnish to STATE a Certificate of Insurance stating that there is 
general comprehensive liability insurance presently in effect for 
APPLICANT and/or its agents, contractors, and subcontractors who 
will be working (in any manner) on STATE property with a combined 
single limit (CSL) of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
occurrence. 

 
B. The Certificate of Insurance must provide: 
 

a. That the insurer will not cancel the insured's coverage without 
30 days prior written notice to the STATE. 

b. That the STATE, its officers, agents, employees, and servants 
are also included as additional names insureds, but only 
insofar as PROJECT operations under this Agreement are 
concerned. 



 

20 

c. The STATE will not be responsible for any premiums or 
assessments on the policy. 
 

C. APPLICANT agrees that all bodily injury liability insurance or self-
insurance required herein shall be in effect at all times during the term 
of this Agreement. In the event said insurance coverage expires at 
any time or times during the term of this Agreement, APPLICANT 
agrees to provide, at least thirty (30) days prior to said expiration date, 
a new Certificate of Insurance or Certificate of Self-Insurance 
evidencing coverage as provided for herein for not less than the 
remainder of the term of the Agreement, or for a period of not less 
than one (1) year. New Certificates are subject to the approval of 
STATE and Department of General Services. In the event 
APPLICANT fails to keep coverage as herein provided in effect at all 
times, STATE may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, 
terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of such event. 

 
D. If APPLICANT is self-insured, the PROJECT APPLICANT shall 

submit a Certificate of Self-Insurance asserting that APPLICANT is 
covered for all proposes of liability for all work performed hereunder. 
STATE and APPLICANT acknowledge that only one Certificate of 
Self-Insurance will be required, and that APPLICANT must maintain 
that level of Self-Insurance [not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000)]. It is also understood that STATE, its officers, agents, 
employees, and servants, are include as covered for all proposes 
insofar as the operations of APPLICANT under this Agreement are 
concerned.  



 

21 

 
SECTION II - SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL 

CONDITIONS 
 

SECTION II-1.  SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS 
 
The work embraced herein shall be done in accordance with the 2015 State 
Standard Specifications, and the 2015 Standard Plans, of the Department of 
Transportation insofar as the same may apply and in accordance with the following 
special provisions. 
 
In order to utilize the State Standard Specifications, some definitions must be 
clarified.  Unless the context otherwise requires, wherever in the specifications and 
other contract documents the following abbreviations and terms, or pronouns in 
place of them, are used, the intent and meaning shall be interpreted as provided in 
this Section One and Section 1-1.06, "Abbreviations" of the State Standard 
Specifications.  The Contractor's attention is directed to Section II-1.01, "Definitions 
and Terms."  A special effort has been made to discuss all references to State, 
Director, and Engineer as they apply to this project.  The Owner's position of 
responsibility in regard to the Standard Specifications will be considered the same 
as the State where the Owner acts as manager of construction and will own and 
operate the improvement. 
 
In case of conflict between the State Standard Specifications and these special 
provisions, the special provisions shall take precedence over and be used in lieu of 
such conflicting portions. 
 
II-1.01   DEFINITIONS AND TERMS 
 
Department of Transportation.  The BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, State of 
California. 
 
Director of Transportation.  The District Manager of the BEAR VALLEY WATER  
DISTRICT, State of California. 
 
Engineer.  The District Engineer of the BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, State of 
California, acting either directly or through properly authorized agents, such agents 
acting within the scope of the particular duties entrusted to them. 
 
Highway Facilities.  All private and public property improvements, landscaping and 
facilities adjacent to and/or pertaining to the work. 
 
Laboratory.  The established laboratory of the Materials and Research Department 
of the Department of Transportation of the State of California or laboratories 
authorized by the Engineer to test materials and work involved in the contract. 



 

22 

 
Owner.  BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT. 
 
State of California.  BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT. 
 
Transportation Building, Sacramento.  BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT office, 
Bear Valley, State of California. 
 
State Standard Specifications.  The 2015 edition of the State Standard 
Specifications of the State of California, Department of Transportation.  Any 
reference therein to the State of California or a State agency, office or officer shall 
be interpreted to refer to District or its corresponding agency, office or officer acting 
under this contract. 
 
California Building Code.  The 2016 edition of the California Building Code. 



 

23 

SECTION II-2.  PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS 
 
II-2.01   GENERAL 
 
The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 2, "Bidding," of the 
State Standard Specifications and these special provisions for the requirements and 
conditions which he must observe in the preparation of the proposal form and the 
submission of the bid. Bidder shall possess a valid State of California Class A 
General Engineering Contractor's License. 
 
The form of Bidder's Bond mentioned in the last paragraph in Section 2-1.34, 
"Bidder's Security," of the State Standard specifications will be found following the 
Proposal. 
 
In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 7106, a Non-Collusion Affidavit 
is included in these specifications.   
 
II-2.02   PROPOSAL 
 
Proposals shall be made on the blank forms prepared by the Owner or duplicate 
copies thereof.  All proposals shall be for the entire work and give the prices 
proposed, shall give all other information requested herein, and shall be signed by 
the bidder or his authorized representative, with his address.  If the proposal is 
made by an individual, his name, signature and post office address must be shown; 
if made by a firm or partnership, the name and post office address of the firm or 
partnership and the signature of at least one of the general partners must be shown; 
if made by a corporation, the proposal shall show the name of the state under the 
laws of which the corporation is chartered, the name and post office address of the 
corporation, and the title of the person who signs on behalf of the  corporation. If the 
proposal is made by the corporation, a certified copy of the bylaws or resolution of 
the board of directors of the corporation shall be furnished showing the authority of 
the officer signing the proposal to execute contracts on behalf of the corporation.  
No bidder may withdraw its bid for a period of 45 days after the bid opening date. 
 
II-2.03   PROPOSAL GUARANTEE 
 
Each proposal shall be accompanied by a certified or cashier's check or bid bond in 
the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total bid price payable to the Owner  as a 
guarantee that the bidder, if bidder's proposal is accepted, will promptly execute the 
contract, secure payment of workers' compensation insurance and furnish a 
satisfactory faithful performance bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) 
of the total bid price and a labor and material bond in the amount of one hundred 
percent (100%) of the total bid price. 



 

24 

II-2.04   MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE   
 
The Contractor shall guarantee the entire work constructed by Contractor under the 
Contract to be free of defects in materials and workmanship for a period of one (1) 
year following the date of acceptance of the work by the Owner.  The Contractor 
shall make, at Contractor's own expense, any repairs or replacements made 
necessary by defects in materials and workmanship which become evident within 
said guarantee period.  The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the 
Owner and the Engineer and officers, agents and employees of the Owner and the 
Engineer against and from all claims and liability arising from damage and injury 
due to said defects.  The Contractor shall make all repairs and replacements 
promptly upon receipt of written order from the Engineer. Should Contractor fail to 
make the repairs and replacements promptly, the Owner shall cause the work to be 
done, and the Contractor and Contractor's surety shall be liable to the Owner for the 
cost of all such work. 
 
Maintenance guarantee shall be a surety bond or other approved security which 
shall be delivered to the Owner prior to the date on which final payment is made.  
Said security shall be in an approved form and executed by a surety company 
or companies satisfactory to the Owner in the amount of ten percent (10%) of 
the contract price or Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000), whichever is greater.  
Security shall remain in force for the duration of the guarantee period specified 
herein.  In lieu of providing security as prescribed above, the Contractor may 
provide for the Faithful Performance Bond furnished under the Contract to remain in 
force until the expiration of said guarantee periods. 
 
Specific guarantees for periods longer than one (1) year may be specified in the 
Special Conditions for specific equipment and materials. 
 
II-2.05   IDENTIFICATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
In accordance with Section 4104 of the California Government Code, each bidder, 
in his Bid, shall set forth: 
 
 1. The name, DIR registration number, and location of the place of 

business of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor, or 
render services to the contractor, in an amount in excess of one-half 
of one percent of the Contractor's total bid; and 

 
2. The portion of the work which will be done by each such 

subcontractor.   
 
In accordance with Section 4107 of the California Government Code, no Contractor 
whose bid is accepted shall, without consent of the OWNER, either: 
 



 

25 

1. Substitute any person as a subcontractor in place of the subcontractor 
designated in the original bid; or 
 

 2. Permit any such subcontract to be assigned or transferred, or allow it 
to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed 
in the bid; or 

 
 3. Sublet or subcontract any portion of the work in excess of one half of 

one percent of the Contractor's total bid as to which his original bid did 
not designate a subcontractor. 

 
Labor Code Section 1720.9 defines the term “ready-mixed concrete” and specifies 
that the rate of pay shall be the current prevailing wage “for the geographical area in 
which the factory or batching plant is located” as determined by the Department of 
Industrial Relations.  The statute also requires a written agreement between the 
party hauling or delivering ready-mixed concrete and the party that engaged its 
services.  The agreement must specify compliance with the Prevailing Wage Law. 
 
Section 1720.0 requires that the company hauling or delivering ready-mix concrete 
provide certified payroll records under Labor Code Section 1776(a) to the party that 
engaged its services and to the general contractor within five working days after the 
employee has been paid, accompanied by a written time record.  The time record 
must be certified by each driver for the performance of job duties. 
 
Penalties for failure to comply with the foregoing sections of the California 
Government Code are set forth in Section 4106, 4110, and 4111 of the Government 
Code. 
 
II-2.06   PRE-BID CONFERENCE 
 
Bidders are requested to attend a pre-bid conference to be held: 
 
DATE:   __________________, 2019    
 
TIME:  9:30 a.m.   
 
LOCATION:  District Office, 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, California 95223. 
  
Representatives of the District and District Engineer's office will be present to 
conduct a field review and answer all bidders' questions at that time.   
 
The project will be administered by the District Engineer. 



 

26 

 
II-2.07   ADDENDA 
 
Each proposal shall include specific acknowledgment in the space provided of 
receipt of all addenda issued during the bidding period.  Failure to so acknowledge 
may result in the proposal being rejected as not responsive. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

27 

SECTION II-3.  AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
 
II-3.01   GENERAL 
 
The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 3, "Contract Award and 
Execution," of the State Standard Specifications and these special provisions.  The 
award of contract, if it be awarded, will be made the lowest responsible bidder 
whose proposal complies with all the requirements prescribed herein. Basis of 
award will be the base bid. All provisions of these specifications shall apply to the 
additive alternates should they be added. 
 
II-3.02   EXECUTION OF CONTRACT, AWARD OF CONTRACT 
 
The District reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids for a period of 
forty-five (45) days after the date of opening, and to waive any informality or 
irregularity in any bid.  No bid can be withdrawn during such forty-five (45) day 
period.   
 
Before a bid is considered for award, the District may, in addition to the Experience 
Qualifications form, require a bidder to submit a statement of facts and details as to 
its business, technical organization and financial resources and equipment available 
and to be used in performing the work.  Additionally, the District may require 
evidence that the bidder has performed acceptable work of comparable magnitude 
and type.  The District expressly reserves the right to reject any bid if it determines 
that the business and technical organization, equipment, financial and other 
resources or other experience of the bidder (including the bidder's subcontractors) is 
not sufficient to qualify bidder for the work bid upon and, therefore, justifies such 
rejection. 
 
The award of the Contract, if awarded, will be to the lowest responsible responsive 
bidder whose bid complies with the requirements set forth herein and award thereto 
is in the best interest of the District.  The issuance by the District of a notice to the 
successful bidder of the award of the contract (hereinafter "Notice of Award") shall 
be deemed the award of Contract.  
 
The Contract agreement shall be executed by the successful bidder and returned, 
together with the contract bonds and evidence of insurance, within ten (10) calendar 
days after written notice of award of the Contract has been delivered.  After 
execution by the Owner, a copy shall be returned to the Contractor. 
 
II-3.03   RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTEES 
 
Within 45 days after bids are opened, the Owner will return the proposal guarantees 
accompanying the proposals which are not to be considered in making the award.  
All other proposal guarantees will be held until the Contract has been fully executed 
after which they will be returned to the respective bidders whose proposals they 
accompany. 



 

28 

SECTION II-4.  BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND  
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

 
Attention is directed to the provisions in Section 8-1.02, "Schedule," in Section 8-
1.04, "Start of Job Site Activities," in Section 8-1.05, "Time," and in Section 8-1.10, 
"Liquidated Damages," of the State Standard Specifications and these special 
provisions. 
 
The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer at the pre-construction conference, a 
complete schedule indicating all phases of the work and their start-up and 
completion dates.  It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to comply with the 
construction schedule and apprise the Engineer of any and all circumstances that 
require alteration to that schedule.  The Engineer will require periodic updating of 
the schedule to insure timely and orderly completion of the project.  It is the desire 
of the Owner to complete the project at its earliest possible time.  
 
Should the Contractor fail to prosecute the work in compliance with the schedule of 
work or reasonable modifications thereto, due to avoidable delay, the Owner may 
terminate the work in accordance with Section 8 of the State Standard 
Specifications.  The Contractor's attention is directed to Section 8-1.14, "Contract 
Termination." 
 
The Contractor shall begin work within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the 
Notice to Proceed. 
 
Said work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion before the expiration of          
forty (40) working days.   
 
Failure to provide a competent work force or diligently prosecute the work in 
accordance with the approved progress schedule shall be cause for temporary 
suspension of work or termination of the contract. 
 
The Contractor shall pay Owner liquidated damages in the sum of not less than 
$1,000 per day for each and every calendar day after expiration of the forty (40) 
working days plus any time extension approved by the Engineer. 



 

29 

SECTION II-5.  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
  
II-5.01   LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
Attention is directed to the Miscellaneous Provisions of Section I and the following 
Notice that is required by Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2, California Code of 
Regulations. 
 

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR NONDISCRIMINATION 
PROGRAM (GOV. CODE, SECTION 12990) 

 
Your attention is called to the "Nondiscrimination Clause," set forth in Section 7-
1.01A(4), "Labor Nondiscrimination," of the State Standard Specifications, which is 
applicable to all nonexempt state contracts and subcontracts, and to the "Standard 
California Nondiscrimination Construction Contract Specifications" set forth therein. 
 The Specifications are applicable to all nonexempt state construction contracts and 
subcontracts of $5,000 or more. 
 
II-5.02   BLANK 
 
II-5.03   PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
The Contractor shall provide for the safety of traffic and the public in accordance 
with the provisions in Section 7-1.04, "Public Safety," of the State Standard 
Specifications and these special provisions.  
 
II-5.04   SURFACE MINING AND RECLAMATION ACT 
 
Attention is directed to the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975, 
commencing in Public Resources Code, Mining and Geology, Section 2710, which 
establishes regulations pertinent to surface mining operations. 
 
Material from mining operations furnished for this project shall only come from 
permitted sites in compliance with the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975. 
 
The requirements of this section shall apply to all materials furnished for the project, 
except for acquisition of materials in conformance with Section 4-1.04, "Use of 
Materials Found on the Job Site," of the State Standard Specifications. 
 
II-5.05   REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES 
 
When the presence of asbestos or hazardous substances are not shown on the 
plans or indicated in the specifications and the Contractor encounters materials 
which the Contractor reasonably believes to be asbestos or a hazardous substance 
as defined in Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, and the asbestos or 



 

30 

hazardous substance has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor may 
continue work in unaffected areas reasonably believed to be safe, and shall 
immediately cease work in the affected area and report the condition to the 
Engineer in writing. 
 
In accordance with Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, all such 
removal of asbestos or hazardous substances including any exploratory work to 
identify and determine the extent of such asbestos or hazardous substance will be 
performed by separate contract. 
 
Should compliance with this section delay the current controlling operation, as 
determined by the Engineer, the delay will be considered a right of way delay and 
the Contractor will be compensated for such delay as provided in Section 8-1.07, 
"Delays," of the State Standard Specifications. 
 
II-5.06   SUBCONTRACTING 
 
Attention is directed to the provisions in Section 5-1.13, “Subcontracting,” of the 
State Standard Specifications and these special provisions. 
 
No subcontract releases the Contractor from the contract or relieves the Contractor 
of their responsibility for a subcontractor's work. 
 
If the Contractor violates Public Contract Code § 4100 et seq., the District may 
exercise the remedies provided under Public Contract Code § 4110.  The District 
may refer the violation to the Contractors State License Board as provided under 
Public Contract Code § 4111. 
 
The Contractor shall perform work equaling at least 30 percent of the value of the 
original total bid with the Contractor’s own employees and equipment, owned or 
rented, with or without operators.  
 
Each subcontract must: 
 

1. Comply with the contract.  
2. Have an active and valid State contractor's license with a classification 

appropriate for the work to be performed (Bus & Prof Code, § 7000 et seq.) 
and be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations. 

3. Submit copies of subcontracts upon request by the Engineer. 
4. Before subcontracted work starts, submit a Subcontracting Request form. 
5. Do not use a debarred contractor; a current list of debarred contractors is 

available at the Department of Industrial Relations' Web site. 
 
Upon request by the Engineer, immediately remove and not again use a 
subcontractor who fails to prosecute the work satisfactorily. 
 



 

31 

 Pursuant to the provisions in Section 1777.1 of the Labor Code, the Labor 
Commissioner publishes and distributes a list of contractors ineligible to perform 
work as a subcontractor on a public works project.  This list of debarred contractors 
is available from the Department of Industrial Relations web site at: 
 

 http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSE/Debar.html. 
 

II-5.07   PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any subcontractor no later than 10 
days of receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision in 
Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code concerning prompt 
payment to subcontractors.  The 10 days is applicable unless a longer period is 
agreed to in writing.  
 
Any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good 
cause and with the District's prior written approval.  Any violation of Section 7108.5 
shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanction and 
other remedies of that section.  This requirement shall not be construed to limit or 
impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the 
contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or 
nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or 
noncompliance by a subcontractor.   
 
II-5.08   PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS  
 
The District shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt 
and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the District, of 
the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these 
acceptances.  The prime contractor, or subcontractor, shall return all monies 
withheld in retention from a subcontractor within 30 days after receiving payment for 
work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of 
portions of the contract work by the agency.  Federal law (49CFR26.29) requires 
that any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for 
good cause and with the agency’s prior written approval.  Any violation of this 
provision shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the 
penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the Business 
and Professions Code.  These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair 
any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime 
contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or 
nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or 
noncompliance by a subcontractor.   

http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSE/Debar.html.


 

32 

 
II-5.09   PAYMENTS 
 
Attention is directed to Section 9-1.16, "Progress Payments," and 9-1.17, "Payment 
After Contract Acceptance," of the State Standard Specifications and these special 
provisions. 
 
No partial payment will be made for any materials on hand which are furnished but 
not incorporated in the work.  Owner shall withhold five percent (5%) retention from 
all partial payments until the lien period has elapsed, and all payments to 
subcontractors and suppliers have been made. 
 
Substitution of security in lieu of retention as set forth in Section 22300 of the Public 
Contract Code is subject to legal counsel review and approval by the Board of 
Directors of the security proposed. 
 
Attention is directed to Section III, "Special Provisions," of these specifications. 
 
Contractor's attention is directed to Section II-5.10, "Claims," of these specifications. 
 
II-5.10   CLAIMS 
 
All claims shall be in conformance with Section 9-1.17D, "Final Payment and 
Claims" of the State Standard Specifications except that the Board of Directors will 
make the final determination of any claims which remain in dispute after completion 
of claim review by the District.   
 
Upon final determination of all claims, the Engineer shall make and issue his final 
estimate in writing, and within 30 days thereafter the District will pay the entire sum, 
if any, found due thereon.  Such final estimate shall be conclusive and binding 
against both parties to the contract on all questions relating to the work done and 
the compensation therefore. 
 
II-5.11   CERTIFIED PAYROLL 
 
All contractors will submit certified payrolls to the Owner's Representative within 7 
days of the end of each weekly period.  Other Labor Standards requirements for this 
project are set forth in this section of the specifications.  Payment will not be 
released until certified payrolls and labor standards certifications are current 
and complete. 
 
Section 1720.0 requires that the company hauling or delivering ready-mix concrete 
provide certified payroll records under Labor Code Section 1776(a) to the party that 
engaged its services and to the general contractor within five working days after the 



 

33 

employee has been paid, accompanied by a written time record.  The time record 
must be certified by each driver for the performance of job duties. 
 
No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works 
project (submitted on or after March 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department 
of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5 [with limited 
exceptions from this requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code Section 
1771.1(a)]. 
 
No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a 
public works project (awarded on or after April 1, 2015) unless registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. 
 
This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations. 
 
The prime contractor must post job site notices prescribed by regulations. 
 
All contractors and subcontractors must furnish electronic certified payroll records 
directly to the Labor Commissioner (aka Division of Labor Standards Enforcement). 
 
II-5.12   GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES 
 
Labor Code Section 1720.9 defines the term “ready-mixed concrete” and specifies 
that the rate of pay shall be the current prevailing wage “for the geographical area in 
which the factory or batching plant is located” as determined by the Department of 
Industrial Relations.  The statute also requires a written agreement between the 
party hauling or delivering ready-mixed concrete and the party that engaged its 
services.  The agreement must specify compliance with the Prevailing Wage Law. 
 
Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates in 
San Joaquin County have been determined by the Director of the California 
Department of Industrial Relations.  These wages are set forth in the General 
Prevailing Wage Rates for this project  are available from the California Department 
of Industrial Relations' Internet web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD.  
 
 

SECTION II-6.  (BLANK) 
 

SECTION II-7.  (BLANK) 
 

SECTION II-8.  (BLANK) 
 

 
 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD


 

34 

 SECTION III  SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION III-1  GENERAL 
 
 
III-1.01   STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
 
The following Standard Specifications may be referred to herein: 
 
American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) 
American Concrete Institute (ACI) 
American Gas Association (AGA) 
American Gear Manufacturers Association (AGMA) 
Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE) 
American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC) 
American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) 
American Society of Heating, Refrigeration, and Air 
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 
American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME) 
American Standard Association (ASA) 
American Water Works Association (AWWA) 
American Welding Society (AWS) 
American Wood Preserves Association (AWPA) 
Antifriction Bearing Manufacturers Association (AFBMA) 
Diesel Engine Manufacturers Association (DEMA) 
Edison Electrical Institute (EEI) 
Federal Specifications (Fed. Spec.) 
National Electric Code (NEC) 
National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA) 
National Electric Safety Code (NESC) 
National Lumber Manufacturers Association (NLMA) 
Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc. (UL) 
Uniform Building Code (UBC) 
State Standard Specifications, State of California, 
Department of Transportation (SSS) 
State Standard Plans, State of California, Department of Transportation (SSP) 
California Building Code (CBC) 
California Electrical Code (CEC) 
California Plumbing Code (CPC) 



 

35 

III-1.02   LOCATE AND PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES 
 
This item of work shall cover the location and protection of ALL existing utilities as 
required under Section 4215 of the Government Code as amended.   
   
Contractor shall locate existing utilities and pothole designated areas for location 
and protection of existing underground facilities prior to start of other work within the 
project as necessary to coordinate and schedule work as approved by the Engineer. 
 
Contractor shall conduct his operations to protect all existing utilities and shall 
contact the following underground alert systems for assistance: 
 
Underground Service Alert (USA)  811 
Bear Valley  Water District  (209) 753-2112 
 
These alert systems may be of assistance in the location of underground utilities.  
Underground utilities are located in the work area.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL 
LOCATE AND PROTECT ALL UTILITIES. 
 
Contractor's attention is directed to Section 5-1.36, "Property and Facility 
Preservation," of the State Standard Specifications.  Nothing in this Section III-1.02 
shall relieve the Contractor of his responsibility set forth in said Section 5-1.36. 
 
When existing facilities are damaged or interrupted by Contractor's activity, 
repair shall be conducted immediately at Contractor's expense.  Contractor 
shall be liable for all costs associated with repair consistent with utility 
standards, any interruption in service, the cost of lost water, any fines 
associated with discharge of wastewater, storm water, or other hazardous 
materials, and or any fines imposed upon the agency resulting from activities 
of the Contractor. 
 
Whenever the Contractor encounters any utility requiring protection, he shall 
take all actions necessary to protect those facilities from damage caused by 
his operation and shall be responsible for perpetual protection of those 
facilities through duration of the work. 
 
Contractor shall be responsible to have utility representatives on site during 
the course of excavation in around any such facility to guarantee emergency 
shutoffs or other action can be taken in a timely manner.  Contractor shall 
notify agency inspector when any work is conducted near existing utilities.  
Damage to facilities shall be immediately reported and all appropriate action 
taken to insure emergency shut off and repairs are accomplished in a timely 
manner.  



 

36 

 
Contractor shall provide, at all times, resources necessary to make or arrange for 
emergency repair in accordance with the regulations of the agency and utility 
impacted. 
 
The contractor is alerted that all utilities may not be shown on the contract plans.  
 
Full compensation for all labor, tools, equipment, equipment standby time, 
materials, and incidentals for doing all work in completing this item of work in 
accordance with the plans and specifications shall be included in the lump sum 
contract price paid for "Locate and Protect Existing Utilities," and no additional 
compensation will be allowed therefore.  No right of delay compensation will be 
made for contractor's failure to coordinate with utilities in advance of the work. 
 
III-1.03   PROTECTION OF EXISTING ROADWAY SURFACES 
 
The Contractor shall protect all County and State roadway surfaces and walkways 
during the course of work.  All equipment working in the surfaced roadways shall be 
equipped with street pads.  Damaged roadway surfaces, concrete walk, or existing 
improvements shall be repaired "at Contractor's expense" to the satisfaction of the 
Owner. 
 
III-1.04   WORKING HOURS 
 
The Contractor shall restrict his working hours from 7:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., Monday 
through Friday, unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.  No work will be 
allowed on holidays or weekends except as authorized by the engineer. 
 
III-1.05   ALIGNMENT AND GRADE CONTROL 
 
The grade and alignment of work shall be maintained by conforming to the plans, 
typical sections, details, and as directed by the Engineer.  The Engineer will be 
available daily to answer all questions regarding the work.   
 
The Contractor shall set such stakes and references as required for the accurate 
construction of the project.  No work shall start until such time as the Engineer has 
had the opportunity to inspect such stakes.   
 
Prior to any construction, the Contractor shall carefully examine the plans, site, and 
his construction stakes.  In the event the Contractor finds a discrepancy, he shall 
immediately notify the District Engineer. No work shall commence prior to resolution 
of all discrepancies. 
 



 

37 

Full compensation for Alignment and Grade Control as set forth herein shall be 
included in the contract price paid for the various affected items of work, and no 
additional compensation or right of way delay claim will be allowed therefore. 
 
III-1.06   SCHEDULE AND SEQUENCE OF OPERATION 
 
The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer at the pre-construction conference, a 
complete schedule indicating all phases of the work and their start-up and 
completion dates.  It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to comply with the 
construction schedule and apprise the Engineer of any and all circumstances that 
require alteration to that schedule.  The Engineer will require periodic updating of 
the schedule to insure timely and orderly completion of the project.  It is the desire 
of the Owner to complete the project at its earliest possible time.    
 
Should the Contractor fail to prosecute the work in compliance with these 
specifications, the schedule of work or reasonable modifications thereto, due to 
avoidable delay, the Owner may terminate the work in accordance with Section 8 of 
the State Standard Specifications.  The Contractor's attention is directed to Section 
8-1.14, "Contract Termination." 
 
III-1.07   SUBMITTAL & SHOP DRAWINGS 
 
The Contractor shall provide complete shop drawings and/or manufacturer's data on 
every manufactured item to be incorporated in this project.  All materials required 
for this project shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval prior to installation of 
the materials. 
 
Submittal Procedure: 
 
A.  Submittals shall be made in triplicate at the Contractor's expense.  Submittals 
shall include Safety Plans, Progress Schedule, Product Data, Shop Drawings, 
Samples, and Quality Assurance Control Data.  ALL submittals shall be submitted 
prior to first pay request or within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of Notice to 
Proceed, whichever comes first unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.  One 
copy of submittals will be returned to the Contractor. 
 
B.  Submittal data shall be presented in a clear, precise, and thorough manner.  
Photocopies are acceptable provided they are as good a quality as the original.  The 
Contractor shall clearly and boldly mark each copy with arrows or circles to identify 
pertinent products (highlighting is acceptable, provided it is done on all copies 
submitted).  Inapplicable portions shall be marked out. 
 
C.  The data shown on the submittals shall be complete with respect to quantities, 
dimensions, profile sizes, connections, attachments, fasteners, specified 
performance and design criteria, materials, applicable standards (such as ASTM 



 

38 

numbers), etc., and similar data to show the District the materials the Contractor 
proposes to provide and to enable the District to review the information.  Submittals 
shall be identified and organized by specification section number.  All submittals 
shall include all information requested by each specification section in order to 
determine compliance with plans and these specifications.  No partial submittals will 
be accepted unless previously authorized by the District.  
 
 D.  At the time of each submission, the Contractor shall provide the District with 
specific written notice of all variations, if any, that the submittal may have and the 
reasons therefore.  This written notice shall be attached to the submittal transmittal 
form.  If the District accepts deviation, it will be noted on its acceptance on the 
returned submittal. 
 
E. Submittal coordination and verification is the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 
 
F.  Designation of Work "by others," if shown in submittals, shall mean that work 
shall be the responsibility of the Contractor rather than the Subcontractor or supplier 
who has prepared submittals. 
 
G.  After review by the District of each submittal, one copy of the submittal will be 
returned to Contractor with actions defined as follows: 
 
 1. NO EXCEPTIONS TAKEN - Accepted subject to its compatibility with 
future submittals and additional partial submittals for portions of the work not 
covered in this submittal.  Does not constitute approval or deletion of specified or 
required items not shown on the submittal. 
 
 2. MAKE CORRECTIONS NOTED (NO RESUBMISSIONS REQUIRED) - 
Same as item 1 above, except that minor corrections as noted shall be made by 
Contractor. 
 
 3. REVISE AS NOTED AND RESUBMIT - Rejected because of major 
inconsistencies or errors that shall be resolved or corrected by the Contractor prior 
to subsequent review by District. 
 
 4. REJECTED - RESUBMIT - Submitted material does not conform to 
drawings and/or specifications in major respect, i.e.: wrong size, model, capacity, or 
material. 
 
H.  The Contractor shall make a complete and acceptable submittal at least by 
second submission.  The District reserves the right to deduct monies from payments 
due to the Contractor to cover additional costs of review beyond the second 
submission.  Incomplete or illegible submittals will be rejected and returned for 
resubmission without review.   
 



 

39 

I.  The Engineer will make a favorable review of submittals or reject them within five 
(5) business days of receipt.  After the District's review of submittals, the Contractor 
shall revise as noted and resubmit as required.  The Contractor shall identify 
changes made on re-submittals.  
  
J.  The Contractor shall not perform any fabrication or work until submittal approval. 
The Contractor shall not extrapolate from submittals covering similar work. 
 
K. The Contractor shall copy, conform, and distribute approved submittals in 
sufficient numbers for Contractor's files, Subcontractors, and vendors. 
 
L.  No substitutions will be considered after bid date except for: Non-availability of 
specified item due to strikes, lockouts, bankruptcy, discontinuance of production, 
proven shortage, or similar occurrences or when the Contractor pays the District a 
credit acceptable to the District and compensates the District for additional review 
time.  Burden of proof of merit of requested substitution is on Contractor. 
 
No compensation will be made for any manufactured item ordered prior to approval 
of the shop drawings.  Submittals shall be made by the Contractor allowing ample 
time for review and distribution (ten working days) prior to beginning the work.  No 
time extensions or delay compensation will be made for contractor's failure to 
submit shop drawings or materials for review in a timely manner. 
 
III-1.08   MOBILIZATION 
 
Mobilization shall conform to the provisions of Section 9-1.16D, "Mobilization," of the 
State Standard Specifications. 
 
Mobilization shall include all preparatory work and operations, including but not 
limited to those necessary for the movement of personnel, equipment, supplies, and 
incidentals to the project site; for the establishment of all offices, buildings, and 
other facilities necessary for work on the project; and for all other work and 
operations which must be performed or costs incurred prior to beginning work on 
the various contract items of work.   
 
Full compensation for mobilization in accordance with the plans and these 
specifications shall be included in the contract price paid for the various items of 
work, and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.  



 

40 

III-1.09   CLEAN UP 
 
During the progress of the work, the Contractor shall keep the entire job site in a 
clean and orderly manner. Spillage resulting from hauling operations along or 
across existing streets or roads shall be removed immediately.  All gutters and 
roadside ditches shall be kept clean and free from obstructions.  Any deviation from 
this practice shall have prior approval from the Engineer.   The Contractor shall 
clean the entire work area each Friday prior to 4:00 P.M. 
 
Before final acceptance of the work, the Contractor shall carefully clean up the work 
and premises, remove all temporary structures built by or for him, remove all surplus 
construction materials and rubbish of all kinds from the grounds which he has 
occupied and leave them in a neat condition.  The Contractor shall grade shoulders, 
ditches, and drainage swale to comply with the plans and these specifications. 
 
Full compensation for complying with this Section III-1.09 in accordance with the 
plans and these specifications and for working within the time frame set forth in the 
contract shall be included in the contract price paid for the various items of work, 
and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore. 
 
III-1.10   WATER POLLUTION 
 
The Contractor shall exercise every reasonable precaution and Best Management 
Practices (BMP's) to protect ditches, conduits and streams from pollution with fuels, 
oils, bitumens, chemicals, concrete, and other harmful materials which could be 
hazardous to aquatic life.  The Contractor shall conduct and schedule his operations 
so as to prevent muddying and silting of said conduits or streams. 
 
The Contractor shall ensure that all vehicles and equipment used are in good 
working order (no leaks) and drip pans or absorbent materials placed under vehicles 
and equipment when not in use.  If maintenance or refueling of vehicles or 
equipment occurs on-site, an approved designated area and/or a secondary 
containment area, located away from drainage courses to prevent the runoff of 
storm water and the runoff of spills shall be utilized.  The Contractor shall ensure 
that all construction areas are covered by a site-wide spill response plan and shall 
have proper spill cleanup materials (absorbent pads, sealed containers, booms, 
etc.) on site at all times to contain the movement of any spilled substances.     
 
Nothing in the contract documents shall relieve the Contractor of the responsibility 
for compliance with Section 5650 and 12015, California Fish and Game Code, or 
other applicable statutes relating to prevention or abatement of water pollution. 
 
Erosion control features, where required, shall be constructed concurrently with 
other work and at the earliest practicable time.  Care shall be exercised to preserve 
vegetation beyond the limits of construction.  When borrow material is obtained from 



 

41 

other than commercially operated sources, erosion of the borrow site during and 
after completion of the work shall not result in water pollution.  The material source 
shall be constructed, where practicable, so that water will not collect or stand 
therein. 
 
The requirements of this Section III-1.10 shall apply to all work performed under the 
Contract and to all non-commercially operated borrow or disposal sites used for this 
project.   
 
The Contractor shall be completely responsible for compliance with all local, county, 
state, and federal regulations pertaining to water pollution and soil erosion including 
the payment of any fines or penalties imposed by any governmental agency as a 
result of work performed by the Contractor.   
 
Full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this Section III-1.10 shall 
be included in the contract price paid for the various items of work, and no 
additional compensation will be allowed therefore. 
 
III-1.11   SAFETY (SHEETING AND SHORING) 
 
The Contractor shall follow construction procedures necessary to provide safe 
working conditions through all phases of the work.  Said procedures shall conform 
to the Safety Orders, Division of Industrial Safety, Title 8, California Administrative 
Code. 
 
The Contractor is solely responsible for outlining the safety procedures to be 
followed by his workmen.  The Contractor shall provide for the safety of the public 
both day and night where they are exposed to the construction operation. 
 
Neither the Owner, the Engineer, nor any representatives thereof shall be 
responsible for the procedures followed by the Contractor. 
 
Excavation for any trench five feet (5') or more in depth shall not begin until the 
permit herein specified is obtained and the Engineer has reviewed the Contractor's 
detailed plan for worker protection from the hazards of caving ground during the 
excavation of such trench.  Such plan shall be submitted at least five (5) days 
before the Contractor intends to begin excavation for the trench and shall show the 
details of the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other protection to be made for 
worker protection during such excavation.  No such plans shall allow the use of 
shoring, sloping, or other protection to be less effective than that required by the 
Construction Safety Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety.  The plan shall be 
prepared and signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil or structural 
engineer in the State of California.  The engineer who prepares the Contractor's 
shoring plans shall certify that the plans conform or exceed the Construction Safety 
Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety of the State of California.  The Contractor 



 

42 

shall procure an excavation permit from the Division of Industrial Safety in 
accordance with Section 1503 of Title 8, Chapter 4, Subchapter 4 of the California 
Administrative Code.  Instructions or lack thereof from the Engineer or his 
representative shall in no way relieve the Contractor of his responsibility with regard 
to safety. 
 
Full compensation for all sheeting, shoring, bracing, or sloping necessary for 
compliance with this section shall be included in the contract price paid for the 
various items of work," and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore. 
 
III-1.12   MATERIALS SUPPLIED BY OWNER 
 
District shall supply Triplepoint Environmental Aeration System as delineated in 
Appendix A.  In addition to the aeration system to be supplied, Appendix A contains 
typical installation details and an Operations and Maintenance Manual for the 
contractor’s use and information. 
 
III-1.13   AS-BUILT PLANS 
 
Contractor shall maintain, during the course of work, a clean and separate set of 
plans to mark thereon locations of all improvements associated with the work set 
forth herein.  Special attention shall be given to location on the plans of existing 
utilities encountered during the course of work.  All changes in work not set forth on 
the project plans shall be carefully noted and drawn to scale.  Contractor shall 
coordinate with District Engineer weekly to corroborate on project plan deviations.  
After completion of work, and prior to final payment to contractor, a complete, 
legible, and clean set of project "as-built" plans shall be provided by the contractor 
for review and acceptance by District. 
 
III-1.14   COMPENSATION 
 
Full compensation for complying with this Section III-1 shall be included in the 
contract price paid for the various items of work, and no additional compensation 
will be allowed therefore.   



 

43 

SECTION III-2   SITE WORK 
 
III-2.01   GENERAL 
 
The Contractor shall, at all times, provide an adequate and professional work force 
that will act, at all times, in a proper, workmanlike manner in the diligent and timely 
prosecution of the work.   
 
The provisions of this section apply to all site work associated with this project.  The 
Contractor's attention is directed to Section III-1. 
 
All construction equipment and materials except as authorized by the Engineer shall 
be removed from the work area, and all open excavations covered or protected at 
the end of each work day in accordance with the plans and these specifications.  
Contractor's equipment and construction materials shall be stored in staging areas 
approved by the District.    
 
III-2.02   CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
 
Clearing and grubbing shall conform to the requirements of Section 16, "Clearing 
and Grubbing," of the State Standard Specifications, except as modified or 
supplemented in these specifications.  Contractor shall provide dust control in 
accordance with Section 14-9.03, "Dust Control," of the State Standard 
Specifications.  Contractor's attention is directed to Section III-1.10, "Water 
Pollution" of these special provisions and Section 5-1.36, "Property and Facility 
Preservation," of the State Standard Specifications. 
 
Clearing and grubbing debris and excavation material not incorporated into the work 
shall become the property of the Contractor and disposed of off-site. 
 
The Contractor shall restrict his equipment and operations to the project limits or as 
designated in the field.  Equipment shall not be operated or stored beyond clearing 
limits.   Contractor shall make his own arrangements for equipment and material 
staging. 
 
Should Contractor, during the course of work, uncover any cultural resource, work 
shall be suspended until a determination is made of the significance of such 
resource.  Contractor shall "move" his operation to other portions of project until 
resumption of work is authorized by the Engineer.  Contractor will be compensated 
for "move" cost approved by the Engineer.  Suspension shall be in accordance with 
Sections 8-1.06, "Suspensions," and 8-1.07, "Delays," of the State Standard 
Specifications.  
 
Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and 
incidentals and for doing all work involved in clearing and grubbing including 



 

44 

removal and disposal of materials (concrete, aggregate base, piping, etc.); 
developing construction site access; and tree/plant protection in accordance with 
the plans and specifications and as directed by the Engineer shall be included in the 
contract price paid for various items of work, and no additional compensation will be 
allowed therefore. 
 
III-2.03   LANDSCAPE PROTECTION 
 
Contractor's attention is directed to Section 5-1.36B, "Landscape," of the State 
Standard Specifications. The Contractor shall protect existing trees and landscaping 
from damage caused by his operations.  Yellow or orange protection fence netting 
shall be placed around designated trees and landscaping as directed by the 
Engineer.  No equipment, materials, or other Contractor activity shall be conducted 
within protection fence limits.   
 
Tree branches which obstruct the work area may be trimmed as set forth herein.  
Tree limbs to be trimmed shall be cut off at the tree trunk or main branch as 
directed. Trimmings shall be mulched and incorporated into erosion control work.  
Trees to be removed shall be cut, stumps excavated, and branches and trunks 
disposed of offsite at the Contractor's expense.  The Engineer shall review and 
approve all tree trimming and tree removal required prior to the Contractor 
conducting any tree work.  The specific number and location of all trees may not be 
shown on the plans.  No tree or landscaping shall be removed without written 
authorization from the Engineer.  
 
Where excavation is required within the drip line of the trees, the Contractor shall 
hand dig the excavation to locate roots.  Pervious backfill shall be placed around all 
root structures exposed by Contractor's operations.  Roots shall be pruned as close 
to the trench excavation edge as possible with a Vermeer root cutter or approved 
equal.  Trees shall be root pruned prior to equipment trenching operations.  Cuts on 
tree roots 1-inch diameter or larger shall be treated with root sealer approved by 
District Engineer. 
 
Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and 
incidentals and for doing all work involved in tree trimming, removal and root pruning 
in accordance with the plans and specifications shall be included in the contract 
price paid for various items of work, and no additional compensation will be allowed 
therefore. 
 
III-2.04   EROSION CONTROL 
 
This work consists of placing and maintaining straw wattles adjacent to disturbed 
soil areas and seeding and strawing all disturbed soil areas.  Work shall be in 
accordance with Section III-1.10, "Water Pollution," of these specifications.   
 



 

45 

The Contractor shall broadcast seed mixture over surface area of disturbed soil in 
accordance with these specifications.  Broadcasting may be by hand or by hydro 
mulching. 
 
Straw, at 2 tons per acre of disturbed soil areas, shall be scattered over seeded 
areas and pressed into the soil by means of a sheep's-foot roller, dozer track walk, 
or other similar equipment approved by the Engineer. 
 
The seed mixture broadcast shall be Blando Brome, Annual Rye, or an acceptable 
equivalent at a rate of 5 lbs. per 1,000 s.f. 
 
Full compensation for providing and maintaining erosion control throughout the 
duration of the contract in accordance with the plans and these specifications shall 
be included in the contract price paid for the various items of work, and no 
additional compensation will be allowed therefore. 
 
III-2.05   FENCING & GATES 
 
The Contractor shall replace or repair fencing and gates removed or damaged by 
his operations.  Existing fence and gates shall be repaired or replaced with material 
equal to or better than existing condition and shall be approved by the Engineer.  All 
fencing and gate replacement or repairs shall occur within one week of disturbance 
unless directed or approved otherwise. 
 
Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and 
incidentals, and for doing all work involved in replacing or repairing fencing and 
gates, complete and in place, in accordance with the plans and specifications, shall 
be included in the contract price paid for various items of work, and no additional 
compensation will be allowed therefore. 
 
III-2.06   WOOD BAFFLE WALL REPAIR 
 
Contractor shall remove existing T&G boards and place new 2’ x 8’ kiln dried select 
knotty tongue and groove Western Red Cedar boards in accordance with the plans 
and specifications. 
 
Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and 
incidentals, and for doing all work involved in wood baffle wall repair, complete and 
in place, in accordance with the plans and specifications, shall be included in the 
lump sum contract price paid for “Wood Baffle Wall Repair,” and no additional 
compensation will be allowed therefore. 



 

46 

 
III-2.07   TRENCHES AND BACKFILL  
 
This work shall consist of performing all operations necessary to excavate earth and 
rock or other material, of whatever nature, including water, regardless of character 
and subsurface conditions, necessary to excavate trenches for pipes and 
appurtenances; to place backfill for structure, pipes and appurtenances and other 
facilities; to backfill trenches and depressions resulting from the removal of 
obstructions; to remove and replace unsuitable material; to  construct protection 
dikes; to remove unstable material and slide material which may enter trenches; and 
to remove and dispose of offsite, all excess material, of whatever nature, resulting 
from trenching and backfilling operations.  All such work shall be in conformance 
with the plans and these specifications or as directed by the Engineer.  Typical 
trench details are shown on the plans. 
 
Backfill material shall conform to the provisions in Section 19, "Earthwork," of the 
State Standard Specifications. Pervious backfill material required by the plans and 
these specifications shall be considered structure backfill and full compensation 
therefore shall be included in the contract price paid for the various items of work, 
and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.  
 
Where pipes are to be installed above original ground or in new embankment fills, 
the embankment shall first be constructed to the required height for a distance on 
each side of the pipeline location of not less than five feet (5').  Embankment shall 
have relative compaction of not less than ninety-five percent (95%).  Upon 
completion and approval of the embankment the trench shall be excavated with the 
sides nearly vertical and the pipelines installed. 
 
When a firm foundation is not encountered due to soft, spongy, or other unsuitable 
material, such material shall be removed to the limits directed by the Engineer, and 
the resulting excavation shall be backfilled with approved pervious backfill 
compacted to ninety percent (90%) relative compaction. 
 
When removal of unsuitable material requires excavation to a depth greater than 
12" below pipe flow line grade, the Engineer will determine the limits of the required 
excavation.  Excavation limits shall be trench width for the length specified by the 
Engineer. 
 
Ditches shall be kept clear for the purpose of handling road drainage.  Drainage 
ways, walkways, and driveways shall be kept clear. 
 
At the end of each working day, there shall be no open trench, unless otherwise 
permitted by the Engineer. 
 



 

47 

In connection with earthwork, all tests shall be made in conformance with the 
following requirements set forth in the State Standard Specifications: 
 
   Tests                           Test Method No 
 

Relative Compaction                  Cal 216 & 231 
Sand Equivalent                      217 
Resistance (R-value)                 301 
Sieve Analysis                       202 

 
Foreign material which falls into the trench prior to or during placement of the 
backfill shall be removed. 
 
The trench widths set forth on the plans are minimum widths.  Where excavation 
greater than the specified widths is necessary for execution of the work, machine or 
hand excavation to a stabilized slope will be permitted provided one-way traffic  can 
be maintained.  Minimum trench width is the distance face-to-face of trench walls or 
inside face to inside face of sheeting should solid sheeting be used.  Maximum 
trench widths from the bottom of the trench to the top of the pipe shall be limited to 
six inches (6") outside the specified minimum trench width, except with specific 
approval by the Engineer. 
 
The Contractor shall furnish all materials and facilities required for trench excavation 
and shall make trenches and excavation dry throughout all pipe laying operations. 
 
The location of underground utilities or other obstructions shall be determined by 
the Contractor sufficiently in advance of excavation so that pipe alignment can be 
confirmed or re- routed without delay.  Contractor's attention is directed to Section 
III-1.02, "Locate and Protect Existing Utilities," of these Special Provisions. 
 
Material for Class 1 and Class 2 Backfill shall be placed in uniform horizontal layers 
not exceeding one foot (1') in thickness before compaction and shall be brought up 
uniformly on all sides of the trench, structure or facility.  When the Contractor can 
satisfactorily demonstrate to the Engineer an alternative method of placing the 
backfill so that all requirements, other than the layer thickness, are met, the 
Engineer will permit the Contractor to use the alternative method.  Under no 
circumstance will the Contractor use the alternative method unless the Engineer's 
approval is obtained in writing.  Material for Class 3 Backfill shall be placed in layers 
not to exceed one foot (1') in thickness before compaction. 
 
Each layer of backfill shall be compacted to a relative compaction indicated for the 
backfill involved.  
 



 

48 

Backfill shall not be placed until the pipe or other facility has been inspected by the 
Engineer and approved for backfilling. The percentage composition by weight as 
determined by laboratory sieves shall conform to the following requirements: 
 
Class 1 Backfill 
 

    Sieve Sizes           % Passing Sieves* 
 
No. 4                   90-100 
No. 200                 <5 

 
*Gradations requirements may be waived with written approval from the Engineer. 
 
"Crusher fines" are acceptable for Class 1 backfill. "Pervious backfill" shall be 
coarse or medium screenings in accordance with Section 37, "Bituminous Seals," of 
the State Standard Specifications or as otherwise approved by Engineer. 
 
Class 2 Backfill    
 
Class 2 Aggregate Base, 1-1/2" maximum, in accordance with Sections 26-1.02, 
26-1.02B, 26-1.035 of the State Standard Specifications except that percentage of 
No. 200 material shall be 15-30% unless otherwise approved by the Engineer. 
 
Class 3 Backfill 
 
Material for Class 3 Backfill may consist of material from excavation free from rocks 
or lumps exceeding three inches (3") in greatest dimension, vegetable matter, and 
other unsatisfactory material.  Backfill shall be compacted to the relative compaction 
shown on the plans or as set forth in these specifications. 
 
Class 4 Backfill 
 
Class 4 Backfill shall be cement-sand slurry comprised of aggregate, cement and 
water.  The aggregate, cement and water shall be proportioned either by weight or 
volume.  Cement used shall be 190 to 210 pounds for each cubic yard of material 
produced.  The water content shall be sufficient to produce a fluid workable mix that 
will flow and can be pumped without segregation of the aggregate while being 
placed. 
 
Materials shall be thoroughly machine mixed in a rotary drum mix truck and placed 
in the trench from a direct truck discharge unless otherwise approved. 
 
Mixing shall continue until cement and water are thoroughly dispersed throughout 
the material.  All mixed slurry shall be placed within one hour of the introduction of 
water and cement to the material.   



 

49 

Aggregate shall be free of organic materials and other deleterious substances and 
have a minimum sand equivalent of 20.  Aggregate shall conform to the following 
grading: 
                                        Percent Passing 
               1/2". . . . . . . . . . 95-100% 
               3/8" . . . . . . . . . 80-100% 
               #4   . . . . . . . . . 75-100% 
               #100 . . . . . . . . . 10-24% 
 
The Contractor may use Class 4 backfill, slurry backfill, at locations approved by the 
Engineer as an alternative to Class 1 backfill.  Slurry backfill shall be placed to neat 
line trench walls using care to completely envelope the pipe in the backfill.  Road 
surfacing will not be permitted until the Engineer is satisfied that the set is sufficient 
to support traffic but in no case prior to setting four (4) hours.  The Contractor shall 
include in all items of work using slurry backfill the full cost of all labor and 
equipment to prevent traffic from crossing any trench with slurry backfill prior to 
setting. 
 
The Contractor may use sufficient amounts of additives for speeding the set of 
slurry backfill in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.  No additive 
shall be used without prior approval of the Engineer as to type and amount. 
 
Slurry backfill shall be placed in a uniform manner that prevents voids in, or 
segregation of the backfill and will not float the pipe. 
 
Full compensation for complying with this section shall be included in the contract 
price paid for various items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed 
therefore. 
 
Full compensation for Class 4 backfill placed as a convenience to the 
Contractor shall be included in the contract price paid for the various items of 
work, and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore. 
 
Class 4 backfill will be paid for as a separate item of work only when Class 4 backfill 
is called for on the plans or is placed upon direction of the Engineer.  Class 4 
backfill shall be paid for at the contract price per cubic yard. 
 
III-2.08   COMPACTION TESTING 
 
The Owner will provide compaction tests at various locations during the work as 
directed by the Engineer.  In the event of a test failure, the Contractor shall remove 
and recompact unacceptable backfill or fills in accordance with the plans and 
specifications.   
 
THE COST OF RE-TESTING SHALL BE BORNE BY THE CONTRACTOR. 



 

50 

SECTION III-3   AERATION SYSTEM 
 
III-3.01   GENERAL 
 
Contractor shall install air header and appurtenances and Triplepoint Environmental 
Aeration System along the proposed alignment specified as set forth on the plans 
and in these specifications.  Work will be conducted within the District property. 
 
III-3.02   AERATION SYSTEM PIPING 
 
"Aeration Pipe" shall be CPVC or stainless steel in accordance with the plans and 
specifications.  Aeration pipe shall be CPVC pipe, Sch. 40 or Sch. 10, Type 304 or 
316 stainless steel pipe.  All stainless-steel fittings, adaptors, or valves shall be Sch. 
10 Type 304 or 316 stainless steel.   
 
Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and 
incidentals, including testing, removal of existing piping and aeration system, pipe 
excavating, placing bedding and backfill material, and for doing all work involved in 
installing aeration pipe and appurtenances, including all CPVC and stainless-steel 
pipe and fittings, Christy boxes, and aeration system manifolds (supplied by 
District); disposal of all removed materials by the Contractor, and miscellaneous 
grading in accordance with the plans and these specifications shall be included in 
the lump sum contract price paid “Aeration System,” and no additional 
compensation will be allowed therefore.  
 
III-3.03   INSTALLATION 
 
Examine lagoon or basin areas and conditions, with Installer present, for 
compliance with requirements for the installation of the aeration system and other 
conditions affecting performance of the work.  Examine aeration system 
components before installation.  Reject components that are damaged.  Proceed 
with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected. 
 
Aeration pipe shall be laid in strict conformity with the prescribed alignment and 
grade specified in the plans and these specifications, or as directed by the 
Engineer.   Before any length of pipe is laid, it shall be carefully inspected for 
defects.  No pipe or other material that shows defect shall be placed.  Each section 
of pipe shall be laid in such a manner as to form an air-tight concentric joint with the 
adjoining pipe.  The interior of the pipe shall be kept clear of all dirt and debris 
during construction. 
 
All aeration pipe laying and joining, including the maximum deflection of joints in 
curved alignment, shall be in accordance with the pipe manufacturer's specifications 
and as directed by the Engineer.  
 



 

51 

Maximum allowable deflection for CPVC pipe after installation shall not exceed five 
percent of the average inside diameter at any location.  Should the installed pipe 
exceed five percent deflection, the pipe must be re-excavated, bedded, and 
backfilled to adequately support the pipe and reduce the pipe deflection to five 
percent or less at no cost to the Owner. Correction by the use of a rerounder is 
unacceptable.   
 
Contractor shall dispose of trench spoils offsite.  
 
Contractor shall install and adjust aeration equipment in accordance with the 
drawings, approved shop drawings, and the manufacturer’s instructions.  Do not 
operate the equipment until the installation is approved by the manufacturer’s 
representative. 
 
Prior to connecting the aeration units to the feeder tubes, Contractor shall clean all 
piping, headers, and accessories through which air is delivered, so that all dust, dirt, 
oil, grease, or other foreign material will be effectively removed from contact with the 
air being blown through the diffusers.  This cleaning shall be done with clean water 
at a velocity of 2 to 3 feet per second. 
 
Contractor shall check installation prior to start-up for conformance to 
manufacturer’s instructions.  Adjust or modify equipment to ensure proper 
operation. 
 
Full compensation for installing aeration system piping and appurtenances in 
accordance with the plans and these specifications shall be included in the contract 
price paid for the various items of work, and no additional compensation shall be 
allowed therefore. 
 
III-3.04   TESTING AND STARTUP 
 

1. General:  After the installation of aeration equipment in one basin is 
complete and the installation is certified by the equipment manufacturer, field 
acceptance tests shall be conducted.  The test procedures shall be generally 
as specified herein; specific written test procedures shall be submitted by the 
Contractor for review and approval by the Engineer.  The field acceptance 
tests shall be conducted by the Contractor under the direct supervision of the 
equipment manufacturer. 
 

2. After the air distribution system is flushed, it shall be pressure tested by the 
Contractor to 20 psi for one minute to ensure no leakage is present. 
 
 



 

52 

3. Air Leakage:  The aeration system shall be turned on and the grid system 
shall be observed for air leakage.  All leaking joints shall be repaired or 
replaced.  
 

4. Test Results:  If the equipment fails a field acceptance test, repairs, 
revisions, or replacement of equipment shall be made as deemed necessary 
by the Engineer. 

 
5. After initial startup, under the supervision of a qualified representative of the 

manufacturer, a preliminary “running-in” period will be provided for the 
Contractor to make field tests and necessary adjustments. 

 
6. Contractor shall place each piece of equipment in the system in operation 

until the entire system is functioning.  All components shall continue to 
operate without alarms or shut downs, except as intended, for five (5) 
consecutive days to be considered started up. 

 
7. Operator shall operate the equipment through the design performance range 

consistent with available flows.  Adjust, balance, and calibrate and verify that 
the equipment, safety devices, controls, and process system operate within 
the design conditions.  Each safety device shall be tested for proper setting 
and signal.  Response shall be checked for each equipment item and alarm. 
Simulation signals may be used to check equipment and alarm responses. 

 
8. At the end of the specified period of operation, the aeration system will be 

accepted if, in the opinion of the Engineer, the system has operated 
satisfactorily. 



 

53 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE HIGHWAY 4
ALPINE  COUNTY, CALIFORNIA,

FEBRUARY 2019

49

49

12

26

26

26

49

Angels
Camp

Murphy's

Arnold

4

4

4

West Point

Mokelumne
Hill

Copperopolis

CIVIL SHEETS:

C1 COVER SHEET

C2 OVERALL SITE PLAN

C3 EXISTING AERATION SYSTEM AND BAFFLE REPAIR

C4 PROPOSED AERATION SYSTEM

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

NOT TO SCALE

COUNTY MAP

SHEET INDEX:

BEAR VALLEY
WASTEWATER TREATMENT POND PROJECT

 PROJECT
LOCATION

S

T

A

T

I

O

N

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

C1

San
Andreas

Valley
Springs

GRADING NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS.

2. A COPY OF THE APPROVED PLAN MUST BE AVAILABLE ON-SITE AT ALL TIMES.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT (USA) AT 800-227-2600 FOR UTILITY
LOCATION BEFORE EXCAVATION WORK.

4. TO ALLOW FOR INSPECTION, ALL WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED DURING DAYLIGHT HOURS ONLY, MONDAY
THRU FRIDAY, EXCLUDING COUNTY HOLIDAYS.

5. CONTRACTOR TO IMPLEMENT BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP'S) TO CONTROL EROSION AND 
REDUCE THE OFF-SITE DISCHARGE OF SEDIMENT TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICABLE.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP ADJOINING PUBLIC STREETS FREE OF DIRT, MUD, AND OTHER PROJECT 
RELATED DEBRIS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. ANY DAMAGE TO PUBLIC STREETS OR ROADWAYS SHALL
BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT NO COST TO THE COUNTY.

7. DUST GENERATION MUST BE MINIMIZED AND A WATER TRUCK MUST BE AVAILABLE ON-SITE FOR 
ADEQUATE DUST CONTROL.

8. ALL REQUIRED LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL PERMITS SHALL BE OBTAINED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION
AND COPIES OF ALL SUCH PERMITS SHALL BE AVAILABLE ON-SITE.

9. IF MORE THAN ONE ACRE OF GROUND IS DISTURBED, THE CONTRACTOR MUST APPLY TO THE CENTRAL
VALLEY REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD FOR COVERAGE UNDER THE STATE'S "STORM 
WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES" AND COMPLY WITH ALL ASSOCIATED PERMIT
REQUIREMENTS.

SHT. 1

RE
V.

 N
o.

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PRJ. No.:

RE
V.

 D
AT

E
BY

3
9

4
 
E

.
 
S

A
I
N

T
 
C

H
A

R
L

E
S

 
S

T
.
  
 |
  

 
P

O
 
B

O
X

 
2

5
1
  
 |
  

 
S

A
N

 
A

N
D

R
E

A
S

,
 
C

A
 
9

5
2

4
9

(
2

0
9

 
)
 
7

5
4

-
1
8

2
4

R
E

VI
S

IO
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA

N
o.

 7
6
5
9
4

R

E
GI

S

T

E

R

E

D

 

P

R

O

F

E
S

S

I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I
N

EE
R

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F

 
C

A
L

I

F

O

R

N

I

A

C

I

V

I

L

MA

T

T

H

E

W

 

S

T

E
P

H

E

N

 

O

S

P

I

T

A
L

B
E

A
R

 V
A

LL
E

Y
W

A
S

TE
W

A
TE

R
 T

R
E

A
TM

E
N

T 
P

O
N

D
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

TA
TE

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

4

A
LP

IN
E

 C
O

U
N

TY

2318

02/12/2019

DMV

MSO

1 2 3 4 5 6

of      SHT. 4

LEGEND:

PROPOSED

EXISTING

(E) FORCE MAIN PIPING

(E) AERATION LAGOON BOTTOM

(E) AERATION LAGOON TOP

(E) DAYLIGHT LINE

(E) DRAIN OR OUTLET PIPE

(P)

(E)

ABBREVIATIONS / LINETYPES:DESCRIPTION:

FM FM

AS SHOWN

F

R

E

M

O

N

T

B

E

A

R

 

V

A

L

L

E

Y

R

D

.

A

S

P

E

N

R

O

A

D

M

O

N

T

I

B

L

O

O

D

S

 
R

I

D

G

E

R

D

.

L

O

M

B

A

R

D

I

 

L

N

.

A

L

P

I

N

E

W

A

Y

T

O

L

L

 

G

A

T

E

 

R

D

.

M
O

N
T
E
 V

IS
T
A

R

O

A

D

H

O

U

S

E

R

O

A

D

W

O
L
F

Q

U

A

K

E

N

C

R

E

E

K

S

I

D

E

 
D

R

I

V

E

C

O

R

R

A

L

 

H

O

L

L

O

W

 

T

R

A

I

L

H

E

A

D

R

O

A

D

B

E

A

R

 

V

A

L

L

E

Y

 

A

I

R

P

O

R

T

P

R

I
V

A

T

E

 
R

O

A

D

AERATION LAGOON

T

O

 

A

R

N

O

L

D

T

O

 

L

A

K

E

 

A

L

P

I

N

E

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE VICINITY MAP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMADOR COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANISLAUS  COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUOLUMNE COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Feb 12, 2019 at 12:33pm   M:\Projects\Bear Valley\2318\_DSGN DWG's\2318_Aeration Lagoon Improvements.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Feb 12, 2019 at 12:33pm   M:\Projects\Bear Valley\2318\_DSGN DWG's\2318_Aeration Lagoon Improvements.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Feb 12, 2019 at 12:33pm   M:\Projects\Bear Valley\2318\_DSGN DWG's\2318_Aeration Lagoon Improvements.dwg



FMFMFMFMFM

FM

FM

FMFM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

(E) 8"∅ PVC FORCE MAIN

(E) SS 8" AIR HEADER
REMOVE AS REQUIRED.

(E) 12"∅ LAGOON
OUTLET

(E) EQUIPMENT
BUILDING

(E) 12"∅ DAM DRAIN

(E) BM # "DAM 74-1"
60d NAIL IN WHITE FIR
70' WEST OF LAGOON,
ELEV. = 7060.41'

(E) 6"∅ TOE DRAIN

280'

270'

(E) TOP OF DIKE,
ELEV. = 7070'

(E) HOLDING RESERVOIR,
NORTH DIKE

7
0
5
0

7

0

7

5

7

1

0

0

7

1

0

0

7

0

7

5

7

1

2

5

7
1
5
0

7
0
7
5

7

1

0

0

7
1
2
5

7

0

5

0

7

0

7

5

7
1
0
0

7

1

2

5

7
1
5
0

(E) PRIVATE ACCESS ROAD

(E) AERATION
LAGOON

PLACE (P) AIR HOSES,
VALVE BOXES, ETC.

(SEE DETAILS, SHEET C4)

(E) BAFFLE WALL

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AS SHOWN

C2AERATION LAGOON OVERALL SITE PLAN

00 50 100

SHT. 2

RE
V.

 N
o.

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PRJ. No.:

RE
V.

 D
AT

E
BY

3
9

4
 
E

.
 
S

A
I
N

T
 
C

H
A

R
L

E
S

 
S

T
.
  
 |
  

 
P

O
 
B

O
X

 
2

5
1
  
 |
  

 
S

A
N

 
A

N
D

R
E

A
S

,
 
C

A
 
9

5
2

4
9

(
2

0
9

 
)
 
7

5
4

-
1
8

2
4

R
E

VI
S

IO
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA

N
o.

 7
6
5
9
4

R

E
GI

S

T

E

R

E

D

 

P

R

O

F

E
S

S

I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I
N

EE
R

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F

 
C

A

L

I

F

O

R

N

I

A

C

I

V

I

L

MA

T

T

H

E

W

 

S

T

E
P

H

E

N

 

O

S

P

I

T

A
L

B
E

A
R

 V
A

LL
E

Y
W

A
S

TE
W

A
TE

R
 T

R
E

A
TM

E
N

T 
P

O
N

D
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

TA
TE

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

4

A
LP

IN
E

 C
O

U
N

TY

2318

02/12/2019

DMV

MSO

1 2 3 4 5 6

of      SHT. 4

O
VE

RA
LL

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Feb 12, 2019 at 12:33pm   M:\Projects\Bear Valley\2318\_DSGN DWG's\2318_Aeration Lagoon Improvements.dwg



2:1

283.00'46.00' 46.00'

20
'

2:1

270.00'46.00' 46.00'

2:1

2:1

1.00' 40.14' 40.14' 40.14' 40.14' 40.14' 40.14' 40.14' 1.00'

1.00' 44.33' 44.33' 43.83' 67.50' 67.50'

4"

8"

9'

1-
1/

2"

9"

18" DIA.

5/16"Ø

(E) AERATOR, (TYP.)

(E) BAFFLE WALL

270.00'46.00' 46.00'

135.00' 135.00'

67.50' 66.50'44.33' 44.33' 43.83'1.00'

1.50'

28
3.

00
'

1.
00

'
40

.1
4'

40
.1

4'
40

.1
4'

40
.1

4'
40

.1
4'

40
.1

4'
40

.1
4'

1.
00

'

37
5.

00
'

46
.0

0'
46

.0
0'

A

C2

A

C2

B

C2

B

C2

362.00'

280'43' 43' 10'

8'

10'

10' 43' 270' 43' 10'

21
.5

'

20
'

2:1 2:1 2:1 2:1

4:12:12:1 2:1

45 SPACES @ 8' = 360'

135'

8' 8' 8'

±
4'

20
'

±
4'

2'

(E) BAFFLE
(E) 6"∅ P.T. POLES,

(TYPICAL)

REMOVE (E) T & G BOARDS AND PLACE NEW
2" x 8" T & G CEDAR BOARDS, FULL LENGTH
OF BAFFLE. ATTACH TO (E) POLES w/ 1/2"∅
x 4" GALVANIZED LAG BOLTS w/
GALVANIZED WASHER

1'
8'

(E) CEDAR BOARDS

(E) BAFFLE

4"

8"

9'

1-
1/

2"

9"

18" DIA.

5/16"Ø

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AS SHOWN

C3

SECTION "A" - "A"

SHT. 3

RE
V.

 N
o.

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PRJ. No.:

RE
V.

 D
AT

E
BY

3
9

4
 
E

.
 
S

A
I
N

T
 
C

H
A

R
L

E
S

 
S

T
.
  
 |
  

 
P

O
 
B

O
X

 
2

5
1
  
 |
  

 
S

A
N

 
A

N
D

R
E

A
S

,
 
C

A
 
9

5
2

4
9

(
2

0
9

 
)
 
7

5
4

-
1
8

2
4

R
E

VI
S

IO
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA

N
o.

 7
6
5
9
4

R

E
GI

S

T

E

R

E

D

 

P

R

O

F

E
S

S

I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I
N

EE
R

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F

 
C

A

L

I

F

O

R

N

I

A

C

I

V

I

L

MA

T

T

H

E

W

 

S

T

E
P

H

E

N

 

O

S

P

I

T

A
L

B
E

A
R

 V
A

LL
E

Y
W

A
S

TE
W

A
TE

R
 T

R
E

A
TM

E
N

T 
P

O
N

D
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

TA
TE

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

4

A
LP

IN
E

 C
O

U
N

TY

2318

02/12/2019

DMV

MSO

1 2 3 4 5 6

of      SHT. 4

SECTION "B" - "B"

CELL #1 CELL #2

EXISTING AERATION LAGOON
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

POND BAFFLE DETAILS

SIDE ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION SECTION "B"

SECTION "A"

NOT TO SCALE

EXISTING AERATOR TO BE REMOVED DETAIL
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

36 AERATORS w/ PIPING TO BE REMOVED

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 A

ER
AT

IO
N

 S
YS

TE
M

AN
D

 B
AF

FL
E 

RE
PA

IR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Feb 12, 2019 at 12:33pm   M:\Projects\Bear Valley\2318\_DSGN DWG's\2318_Aeration Lagoon Improvements.dwg



1. EXISTING CONDITIONS ARE TAKEN FROM AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS, FIELD
OBSERVATIONS, AND/OR PRIOR CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, WHEN 
AVAILABLE. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS.

2. DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED FOR PLANNING PURPOSES TO PROVIDE A 
GENERAL OVERVIEW OF INSTALLATION OPTIONS AVAILABLE FOR USE WITH
THE TRIPLEPOINT AERATION SYSTEM. REVISIONS MAY BE NECESSARY TO
ACCOMMODATE PROJECT-SPECIFIC FEATURES.

3. ALL DIMENSIONS AND SIZES ARE PRELIMINARY AND MAY NEED TO BE 
ALTERED BASED ON ACTUAL FIELD DIMENSIONS.

4. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE HEADER PIPE BE BURIED ON A FLAT 
SURFACE OR BERM, ADDITIONAL PIPE SUPPORT WILL BE REQUIRED FOR 
INSTALLATION OF HEADER ON SLOPED PART OF BERM IF NECESSARY.

ITEM                          DESCRIPTION   TPE BC
1 BLOWERS     X
2 HEADER PIPING AND VALVES X
3 LATERALS AND/OR RISER STUBS X
4 AERATION CONTROL MANIFOLDS    X
5 AERATION CONTROL VALVES     X
6 FLEXIBLE TUBING     X
7 AERATORS     X
TPE= TRIPLEPOINT ENVIRONMENTAL
BC = BY CONTRACTOR
NOTE: THIS SCOPE OF SUPPLY IS TYPICAL. CHECK QUOTATION

FROM TRIPLEPOINT ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC FOR COMPLETE
SCOPE OF SUPPLY.

TYPICAL SCOPE OF SUPPLY

NOTES:

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AS SHOWN

C4
SHT. 4

RE
V.

 N
o.

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PRJ. No.:

RE
V.

 D
AT

E
BY

3
9

4
 
E

.
 
S

A
I
N

T
 
C

H
A

R
L

E
S

 
S

T
.
  
 |
  

 
P

O
 
B

O
X

 
2

5
1
  
 |
  

 
S

A
N

 
A

N
D

R
E

A
S

,
 
C

A
 
9

5
2

4
9

(
2

0
9

 
)
 
7

5
4

-
1
8

2
4

R
E

VI
S

IO
N

S
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA

N
o.

 7
6
5
9
4

R

E
GI

S

T

E

R

E

D

 

P

R

O

F

E
S

S

I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I
N

EE
R

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F

 
C

A

L

I

F

O

R

N

I

A

C

I

V

I

L

MA

T

T

H

E

W

 

S

T

E
P

H

E

N

 

O

S

P

I

T

A
L

B
E

A
R

 V
A

LL
E

Y
W

A
S

TE
W

A
TE

R
 T

R
E

A
TM

E
N

T 
P

O
N

D
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

TA
TE

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

4

A
LP

IN
E

 C
O

U
N

TY

2318

02/12/2019

DMV

MSO

1 2 3 4 5 6

of      SHT. 4

AERATION LAGOON LAYOUT PLAN
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AERATION LAYOUT
BEAR VALLEY CALIFORNIA

BILL OF MATERIALS

HEADER FOR BEAR VALLEY

ITEM QUANTITY UNITS DESCRIPTION

1 1 EA. 8" X 4" SS REDUCER

2 1 EA.
4" SS X CPVC ADAPTER, WELD

3 1 EA. 4" CPVC TEE

4 1 EA. 4" SCH. 40 CPVC

5 162 L.F.
4" X 2.5" SS SADDLE, FPT

6 4 EA.
2.5" SS NIPPLE, MPT, LENGTH TBD

7 8 EA.
2.5" SS UNION, FPT

8 2 EA.
2.5" SS CAP, FPT

9 2 EA.
2.5" SS 90° ELBOW, FPT

10 2 EA.
2.5" BALL VALVE, MPT

11 2 EA. 4" X 2" CPVC REDUCER

12 2 EA.
2" SS X CPVC ADAPTER, FPT

13 2 EA.
2" SS NIPPLE, CLOSE

14 2 EA.
2" SS BALL VALVE, FPT

15 2 EA. 45° CPVC FITTING

N/A 8 EA.

4" CPVC COUPLING (WHERE REQUIRED)

ALL UNSPECIFIED MATERIAL SHALL BE SCH. 40 CPVC

ALL STAINLESS SHALL BE MIN. SCH. 10 TYPE 304 OR 316

±40' ±40' ±40' ±40'

1'

3'

NUMBERED NOTES:

PLUMBING SCHEMATIC
NOT TO SCALE

PLUMBING SCHEMATIC, SECTION "A" - "A"
NOT TO SCALE

TRENCH DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

4"12"

12
"

M
IN

.

36
" M

IN
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 A

ER
AT

IO
N

 S
YS

TE
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Feb 12, 2019 at 12:33pm   M:\Projects\Bear Valley\2318\_DSGN DWG's\2318_Aeration Lagoon Improvements.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) B3048 CHRISTY BOX w/ H20 GALV. 3 PIECE STEEL CHECKER PLATE BOLT DOWN LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 6 PORT MANIFOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) 8 PORT MANIFOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P) B3048 CHRISTY BOX w/ H20 GALV. 3 PIECE STEEL CHECKER PLATE BOLT DOWN LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: MATERIALS TO BE SUPPLIED BY CONTRACTOR UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 8" SS (12" MIN. COVER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLASS III BACKFILL COMPACT @ 95% R.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLASS I BACKFILL COMPACT @ 95% R.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A




















































	BVWD Feb 19 2019 Agenda - Final
	Minutes_11_19_18_
	OPERATIONS REPORT GM NOVEMBER 19 2018 Addendum to Minutes
	AGENDA ITEM

	Agenda Item #2 - Procurement Policy
	Agenda Item #3 - Lagoon Aeration System Upgrade
	BV WWTP Pond Improvement Project Specs
	NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS
	PROPOSAL
	BID SUMMARY
	INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER
	NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION
	BID BOND
	CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT
	PERFORMANCE BOND
	PAYMENT BOND
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	SECTION II - SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS
	SECTION II-1.  SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS
	II-1.01   DEFINITIONS AND TERMS

	SECTION II-2.  PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS
	II-2.01   GENERAL
	II-2.02   PROPOSAL
	II-2.03   PROPOSAL GUARANTEE
	II-2.04   MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE
	II-2.05   IDENTIFICATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS
	II-2.06   PRE-BID CONFERENCE
	II-2.07   ADDENDA

	SECTION II-3.  AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
	II-3.01   GENERAL
	UII-3.02   EXECUTION OF CONTRACT, AWARD OF CONTRACT
	II-3.03   RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTEES

	SECTION II-4.  BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND
	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
	SECTION II-5.  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
	II-5.01   LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION
	II-5.02   BLANK
	II-5.03   PUBLIC SAFETY
	II-5.04   SURFACE MINING AND RECLAMATION ACT
	II-5.05   REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES
	II-5.06   SUBCONTRACTING
	II-5.07   PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS
	II-5.08   PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS
	II-5.09   PAYMENTS
	II-5.10   CLAIMS
	II-5.11   CERTIFIED PAYROLL
	II-5.12   GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES

	SECTION II-6.  (BLANK)
	SECTION II-7.  (BLANK)
	SECTION II-8.  (BLANK)

	SECTION III  SPECIAL PROVISIONS
	SECTION III-1  GENERAL
	III-1.01   STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS
	III-1.02   LOCATE AND PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES
	III-1.03   PROTECTION OF EXISTING ROADWAY SURFACES
	III-1.04   WORKING HOURS
	III-1.05   ALIGNMENT AND GRADE CONTROL
	III-1.06   SCHEDULE AND SEQUENCE OF OPERATION
	III-1.07   SUBMITTAL & SHOP DRAWINGS
	III-1.08   MOBILIZATION
	III-1.09   CLEAN UP
	III-1.10   WATER POLLUTION
	III-1.11   SAFETY (SHEETING AND SHORING)
	III-1.12   MATERIALS SUPPLIED BY OWNER
	III-1.13   AS-BUILT PLANS
	III-1.14   COMPENSATION

	SECTION III-2   SITE WORK
	III-2.01   GENERAL
	III-2.02   CLEARING AND GRUBBING
	III-2.03   LANDSCAPE PROTECTION
	III-2.04   EROSION CONTROL
	III-2.05   FENCING & GATES
	III-2.06   WOOD BAFFLE WALL REPAIR
	III-2.07   TRENCHES AND BACKFILL
	III-2.08   COMPACTION TESTING

	SECTION III-3   AERATION SYSTEM
	III-3.01   GENERAL
	III-3.02   AERATION SYSTEM PIPING
	III-3.03   INSTALLATION
	III-3.04   TESTING AND STARTUP

	APPENDIX A


	2749_Aeration Lagoon Baffle Repair_20190212
	Sheets and Views
	1 C1
	2 C2
	3  C3
	4 C4


	Agenda Items #4 - Operations Report
	Financials - February 19, 2019

